
 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda ..................................................................................................................... 2 

Minutes .................................................................................................................... 8 

Business Arising .................................................................................................... 24 

Reports of Officers/Program Managers ................................................................. 37 

New Business/General Business ............................................................................ 58 

Correspondence Items ........................................................................................... 91 

Items of Information ............................................................................................ 123 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

MONTHLY BOARD PACKAGE 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FOR THE MEETING DATED:  

 

September 22, 2015 

 

 

TIME & PLACE:  

5:00 P.M. 

Algoma Public Health, Sault Ste. Marie, 

3
rd

 Floor, 

Sault Ste. Marie Room A & B 

Algoma Public Health’s  

1
st
 Annual Family BBQ 

September 1, 2015 
 

Page 1 of 138



 

ALGOMA PUBLIC HEALTH BOARD MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 22, 2015 @ 5:00 pm 

SAULT STE MARIE ROOM A&B, 1
ST

 FLOOR, APH SSM 

A*G*E*N*D*A  

 

1) Meeting Called to Order by Mr. L. Mason, Board Chair 

a) Declaration of Conflict of Interest 

 2) Adoption of Agenda Items Dated September 22 , 2015 

Resolution 

THAT the agenda items dated September 22, 2015 be adopted as circulated. 

 3) Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting Dated  

Resolution 

THAT the minutes of the meeting dated June 17, 2015 be adopted as circulated; and 

THAT the minutes of the special meeting dated June 29, 2015 be adopted as circulated; and 

THAT the minutes of the special meeting dated August 6, 2015 be adopted as circulated. 

 4) Delegations/Presentations. 

No presentation this month. 

 5) Business Arising from Minutes 

a) Governance Standing Committee TOR 

Resolution 

THAT the Board approves the Terms of Reference for the Governance Standing Committee as 

presented. 

 

b) Algoma Public Health Performance Monitoring Plan 

Resolution 

THAT the Board approves the Performance Monitoring Plan as presented. 

 6) Reports of Committees 

a) Finance and Audit Committee  

b) Governance Standing Committee 

 7) Reports of Officers/Program Managers 

a) Acting Medical Officer of Health and Acting Chief Executive Officer 

Resolution 
THAT the report of the Acting Medical Officer of Health and CEO 

for the month of September 2015 be adopted as presented. 

 

b) Chief Financial Officer/Director of Operations 

i) Financial Statements for the Period Ending: August 31, 2015 

Resolution 

THAT the financial reporting for the period ending August 31, 2015 

be adopted as presented. 

 

ii) Annual Reconciliation for Infant Development Program 

Resolution 

THAT the Board approves the annual reconciliation for the Infant 

Development Program for the year ending March 31, 2015. 

 

 

 

Dr. P. Sutcliffe   

Tony Hanlon, Ph.D. 

 

 

 

Justin Pino 

 

Page 2 of 138



Agenda 

Board of Health Meeting 

September 22, 2015 

Page 2 

 

8) New Business/General Business 

a) Ontario Public Health Organizational Standards Compliance Checklist/Attestation 

 

b) Board Evaluation Summary 

 

c) 02-05-010 – Board Minutes and Packages – Posting/Circulation/Retention – Revised 

Resolution 

THAT the Board approves changes to policy 02-05-010 Board Minutes and Packages – 

Posting/Circulation/Retention as presented. 

 

d) 02-05-070 – In-Committee Material – Posting/Circulation/Retention – New 

Resolution 

THAT the Board approves the new policy 02-05-060 In-Committee Material -

Posting/Circulation/Retention as presented. 

 

e) Bylaw 95-1 – To Regulate the Proceedings of the Board of Health – Revised 

Resolution 

THAT the Board approves the changes to Bylaw95-1 To Regulate the Proceedings of the Board 

of Health as presented. 

 

f) 02-05-060 – Freedom of Information – New 

Resolution 

THAT the Board approves the new policy 02-05-060 Freedom of Information as presented. 

 

g) 02-05-030 – Board Member Code of Conduct – For Review and discussion at October Board meeting 

 

h) Healthy Babies Healthy Children Program – Briefing Note 

Resolution 

WHEREAS the Healthy Babies Healthy Children (HBHC) program is a 100% funded Ministry of 

Child and Youth Services (MCYS) program provided by all 36 Ontario Boards of Health; and 

 

WHEREAS the HBHC goals are to promote optimal physical, cognitive, communicative and 

psychosocial development in children through effective prevention and early intervention 

services for families as well as to act as a catalyst for coordinated, effective, integrated system of 

services and supports for healthy child development and family well-being though partnership 

and collaboration with a network of services providers; and 

 

WHEREAS collective agreement settlements, travel costs, pay increments and accommodation 

costs have increased the costs of implementing the HBHC program, the management and 

administration costs of which are already offset by the cost-shared budget for provincially 

mandated programs; and 

 

WHEREAS Algoma Public Health has not received a budget increase in the Healthy Babies 

Healthy Children (HBHC) Program since 2008; and 

 

WHEREAS the HBHC program has made every effort to mitigate the outcome of the funding 

shortfall, this has becoming increasingly more challenging and will result in the discontinuation 

of weekend services in the HBHC program. 

Page 3 of 138



Agenda 

Board of Health Meeting 

September 22, 2015 

Page 3 

 

THEREFOR BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Algoma District Board of Health supports a letter to 

the Minister of Children and Youth Services to advocate to fully fund all program costs related to 

the HBHC Program; and  

 

FURTHER THAT this motion be forwarded to the Association of Local Public Health Agencies, 

the Chief Medical Officer of Health and all Ontario Boards of Health. 

 

i) Public Health Support for a Basic Income Guarantee – Briefing  Note 

Resolution 

WHEREAS low income, and high income inequality, have well-established, strong relationships 

with a range of adverse health outcomes; and  

 

WHEREAS  13.9% of Ontarians and 14.4% of Algoma residents live in low income according to 

the 2011 National Household Survey after-tax low-income measure; and 

 

WHEREAS income inequality continues to increase in Ontario and Canada while current income 

security programs by provincial and federal governments have not proven sufficient to ensure 

adequate, secure income for all; and  

 

WHEREAS a basic income guarantee – a cash transfer from government to citizens not tied to 

labour market participation - ensures everyone an income sufficient to meet basic needs and live 

with dignity, regardless of work status; and 

 

WHEREAS basic income resembles income guarantees currently provided in Canada for seniors 

and children, which have contributed to health improvements in those age groups; and 

 

WHEREAS there was an encouraging pilot project of basic income for working age adults 

conducted jointly by the Government of Manitoba and the Government of Canada in Dauphin, 

Manitoba in the 1970s, which demonstrated several improved health and educational outcomes; 

and  

 

WHEREAS a basic income guarantee can reduce poverty and income insecurity, and enable 

people to pursue educational, occupational, social and health opportunities relevant to them and 

their family;  and 

 

WHEREAS the idea of a basic income guarantee has garnered expressions of support from the 

Canadian Medical Association, Alberta Public Health Association and the Association of Local 

Public Health Agencies as a means of improving health and food security for low income 

Canadians; and 

 

WHEREAS there is momentum growing across Canada from various sectors and political 

backgrounds for a basic income guarantee; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Health of Algoma endorses the 

concept of a basic income guarantee;   

 

AND FURTHER in keeping with APH’s endorsement of a basic income guarantee as a poverty 

reduction strategy, we support the development of a community wide campaign to increase 

Page 4 of 138



Agenda 

Board of Health Meeting 

September 22, 2015 

Page 4 

 

awareness and action in Algoma; 

 

AND FURTHER that Algoma Public Health supports the recommendations made by a number of 

Ontario clinical and public health physicians, to the provincial government, advocating for a 

basic income guarantee demonstration project;  

 

AND FURTHER endorses that a formal letter of support be developed and sent to the Minister of 

Health and Long-Term Care in this regard. 

 

j) Call to Action - Reducing Smoking Rates in the District of Algoma – Briefing Note 

Resolution 

WHEREAS Algoma Public Health is committed to preventing disease and promoting the health 

of individuals and communities in the Algoma District; and 

 

WHEREAS the incidence of lung and bronchus cancer for the district of Algoma is significantly 

higher than that of the province of Ontario; and 

 

WHEREAS the 2011-2012 cycle of the Canadian Community Health Survey, identifies current 

smokers, age 12 or older who have smoked at least 100 cigarettes in their lifetime and have 

smoked in the past 30 days, as 23.6% in Algoma compared to 17.8% for Ontario; and 

 

WHEREAS supporting a call to action to reduce smoking rates by 5% in 5years will bring 

Algoma’s smoking rates more in line with the provincial average and help to reduce health 

inequities in the prevention of cancer; and 

 

WHEREAS a collaboration with key partners and municipalities to address the smoking rate will 

promote a systems approach to ensuring access of all residents of Algoma to quit smoking 

assistance and support a collective impact on reducing smoking rates in Algoma; and 

 

WHEREAS continued efforts to prevent youth from starting to smoke remains vital, the proposed 

5% reduction in smoking rates over five years can only be achieved by significantly increasing 

the successful quit attempts among people who currently smoke; and 

 

WHEREAS Algoma has the potential to become Ontario’s “cessation innovation accelerator” 

where new ideas emerging from stakeholders and from research evidence are tested to meet the 

challenging goal of reducing smoking rates for Algoma and the Province.  

 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Health of Algoma endorses the concept of 

a district-wide goal to reduce smoking rates by 5% over the next 5years; and  

 

FURTHER THAT in keeping with APH’s endorsement of a district-wide goal, supports the 

development of a strategy that engages community partners including those from health care, 

education, and the private sector to support the implementation of  a 5 year smoking reduction 

plan across the district; and 

 

FURTHER THAT Algoma Public Health supports the development of an internal and external 

branded communication strategy directed at smokers to make quit smoking attempts; and 

 

Page 5 of 138



Agenda 

Board of Health Meeting 

September 22, 2015 

Page 5 

 

FURTHER THAT the Board of Health of Algoma endorses a proposal submission in partnership 

with the Ontario Tobacco Research Unit to the Ministry of Health to fund a 5 year smoking 

reduction strategy; and 

 

FURTHER THAT APH requests municipalities and townships across Algoma to support a 

district-wide strategy by passing resolutions that support a call to action to reduce smoking rates 

by 5% over the next 5years. 

 

k) Prenatal Postnatal Nurse Practitioner Program – Briefing Note 

Resolution 

WHEREAS Algoma Public Health has been operating since June 2014 in the absence of a 

Prenatal and Postnatal Nurse Practitioner program. 

 

WHEREAS indicators show no recent growth in the number of unique clients, new clients and 

client visits. Additionally, survey results of Algoma Public Health clients suggest over 80% of 

pregnant women and women with children under the age of 5 have primary health care 

coverage. 

 

WHEREAS key stakeholders and residents of Sault Ste. Marie have not expressed a community 

need for this program at Algoma Public Health. 

 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Algoma Public Health recommends the withdrawal of the 

Prenatal and Postnatal Nurse Practitioner program from Sault Ste. Marie services.    

 9) Correspondence Items 

a) Letter to Hon. Wynne from Perth District Health Unit Re: Health and Physical Education Curriculum 

b) Letter to Hon. MacCharles from Sudbury & District Health Unit Re: Healthy Babies Healthy Children 

Program 

c) Letter to Hon MacCharles from Grey Bruce Health Unit Re: Healthy Babies Healthy Children Program 

d) Letter to Hon. Hoskins from Sudbury & District Health Unit Re: Enforcement of the Immunization of 

School Pupils’ Act 

e) Letter to Hon. Wynne from Sudbury & District Health Unit Re: Northern Ontario Evacuations of First 

Nations Communities 

f) Letter to Hon. Wynne from Grey Bruce Health Unit Re: Northern Ontario Evacuation of First Nations 

Communities  

g) Letter to Hon. Harper from Durham Region Re: National Alcohol Strategy Advisory Committee 

h) Letter to Hon. Hoskins from Ontario Physicians Re: Basic Income Guarantee for Ontario 

i) Letter to Mr. MacLean, Town of Thessalon from Dr. Hoskins Re: In Support of APH resolution to 

maintain preventive oral health services 

j) Letter to Hon. Hoskins from Grey Bruce Health Unit Re: Smoke Free Multi-Unit Housing 

 10) Items for Information 

a) Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) News Release – June 19, 2015 

b) Memo from Chief Medical Officer of Health - Amendments to Food Safety Protocol 

c) Memo from Chief Medical Officer of Health – Amendments to the Emergency Preparedness Protocol  

d) Grey Bruce Resolution on Bruce Grey Food Charter  

e) New Integrated Dental Program Update 

f) Thank you Card from Sandra Laclé 

 

 

Page 6 of 138



Agenda 

Board of Health Meeting 

September 22, 2015 

Page 6 

 

11) Addendum 

 12) That The Board Go Into Committee 

Agenda Items: 

a) Adoption of previous in-committee minutes dated June 17, 2015 and August 6, 2015 

b) Solicitor Client Privilege 

 13) That The Board Go Into Open Meeting 

 14) Resolution Resulting From In-Committee Session 

 15) Announcements: 

Next Board Meeting: 

TBD 

Sault Ste. Marie Room A&B, 1
st
 Floor, Algoma Public Health, Sault Ste. Marie 

 16) That The Meeting Adjourn 

Page 7 of 138



 

ALGOMA PUBLIC HEALTH BOARD MEETING 

June 17, 2015 

PRINCE ROOM, 3
RD

 FLOOR, APH SAULT STE. MARIE 

MINUTES 

 
PRESENT: Ian Frazier Candace Martin Lee Mason Dennis Thompson 

     

REGRETS: Ron Rody    

     

TELECONF: Sue Jensen  

   

OFFICIALS 

PRESENT: 

Acting Medical Officer of Health Dr. Penny Sutcliffe 

Acting Chief Executive Officer Sandra Laclé 

 Chief Financial Officer Justin Pino 

 Director of Human Resources and Corporate Services Antoniette Tomie 

 Director of Community Services Laurie Zeppa 

 Board Secretary Christina Luukkonen  

   

OFFICIALS 

REGRETS: 

Acting Director of Clinical Services Jonathon Bouma 

   

GUESTS: Manager of Chronic Disease Prevention, Prevention of 

Injury & Substance Misuse and Sexual Health 

Kristy Harper 

 Mayor for the City of Sault Ste. Marie  Mayor Christian Provenzano 

   

1) CALL TO ORDER  
Mrs. Luukkonen, Secretary to the Board of Health called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm 

Mrs. Luukkonen welcomed staff and guest. 

 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS TO THE BOARD OF HEALTH FOR THE DISTRICT OF 

ALGOMA HEALTH UNIT FOR THE REMAINDER OF 2015 

Election of Chair 

Mrs. Luukkonen called for nominations for the position of Board Chair. 

 

Mr. Thompson nominated Mr. Mason. 

 

Mrs. Luukkonen called for any other nominations. 

 

Mrs. Luukkonen called for any other nominations. 

 

There being no further nominations, the nomination for Algoma Public Health Board of Health Chair 

for the remainder of 2015 was closed. 

 

Mr. Mason accepted the nomination. 

2015-87 Moved: I. Frazier 

 Seconded: C. Martin 

 Mr. Lee Mason is duly elected by acclamation as Board Chair for the remainder of 

2015. 

 CARRIED. 

Page 8 of 138



Minutes  

Board of Health Meeting 

June 17, 2015   

Page 2 

 

Election of Vice-Chair 

Mr. Mason called for nominations for the position of Board Vice-Chair. 

 

Mr. Thompson nominated Mr. Frazier. 

 

Mr. Mason called for any other nominations. 

 

Mr. Mason called for any other nominations. 

 

There being no further nominations, the nomination for Algoma Public Health Board of Health Vice-

Chair for the remainder of 2015 was closed. 

 

Mr. Frazier accepted the nomination. 

2015-88 Moved: D. Thompson 

 Seconded: C. Martin 

 Mr. Ian Frazier is duly elected by acclamation as Board Vice-Chair for the remainder 

of 2015. 

 CARRIED. 

 

2) DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
Mr. Mason called for conflicts of interest; none were presented. 

 

3) ADOPTION OF AGENDA dated June 17, 2015   

2015-89 Moved: I. Frazier 

 Seconded: D. Thompson 

 THAT the agenda items dated June 17, 2015 be adopted as circulated. 

 CARRIED. 

 

4) APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES dated May 20, 2015 

2015-90 Moved: I. Frazier 

 Seconded: D. Thompson 

 THAT the minutes of the meeting dated May 20, 2015, be adopted as circulated.  

 CARRIED. 

 

5) DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 

a) Hiring Interim Chief Financial Officer (2013) 

Mr. Mason invited Mayor Provenzano, City of Sault Ste. Marie to address the Board. Mayor Provenzano 

thanked the Board for accepting his request to speak. Mayor Provenzano explained that his reasons for 

addressing the Board have changed since the release of the Ministry’s report. The Ministry’s report has 

answered his questions. He thanked Mrs. Laclé and Dr. Sutcliffe for the leadership that they have provided 

for APH in the last couple of months and expressed gratitude to the Sudbury and District Health Unit for 

their support as well. He expressed that the City of Sault Ste. Marie values the work the Board of Health 

does for our City. He also acknowledged the work of the previous Board members and reinforced that the 

City of Sault Ste. Marie is committed to working with APH and the Ministry. Mayor Provenzano also 

expressed great appreciation for the hard work and program commitment the staff has shown to Algoma 

Public Health and the community. 

 

 

Page 9 of 138



Minutes  

Board of Health Meeting 

June 17, 2015   

Page 3 

 

Mayor Provenzano urged the Board to release the KPMG report but acknowledged that he understands that 

there are contractual obligations that are preventing the release of the report. S. Laclé spoke regarding the 

Board’s position on releasing the report. APH has received a freedom of information request for the release 

of the KPMG report and is working through the FOI process as per the legislation. Dr. Sutcliffe thanked to 

the City of Sault Ste. Marie for their support to APH.  

 

Mr. Mason thanked Mayor Provenzano for coming and speaking with the Board and indicated that the Board 

looks forward to working with the City of Sault Ste. Marie. 

 

Mr. Mason asked that the Board members introduce themselves. 

 

6) BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 

a) Establishment, Maintenance and Use of a Reserve Fund 

Revised documents were provided at the beginning of the meeting. J. Pino highlighted the briefing note and 

a new policy regarding the creation of a reserve fund. I. Frazier reported to the Board that the Finance and 

Audit Committee reviewed the briefing note and draft policy at its meeting on June 11, 2015 and is in 

support of creating a reserve fund. 

2015-91 Moved: I. Frazier 

 Seconded: C. Martin 

 Therefore be it resolved THAT: 

 

The Board of Health forthwith establish and maintain a reserve fund that is utilized for 

Working Capital, Human Resources Management, Public Health Initiatives and 

Response, Corporate Contingencies and Facility and Equipment Repairs and 

Maintenance; and, 

 

The reserve fund shall be used and applied only to pay for expenses incurred by or on 

behalf of the Board of Health and the Medical Officer of Health in the performance of 

their functions and duties under the Health Protection and Promotion Act or any other 

Act; and, 

 

The reserve fund shall not be used or applied for capital expenditures to acquire and 

hold real property unless the approval of the Councils of the majority of the 

Municipalities in the Algoma Health Unit have been first obtained pursuant to section 

52(4) of the Act; and, 

 

The Board of Health in each year may provide in its estimate for a reasonable amount 

to be paid into the reserve fund provided that no amount shall be included in the 

estimates which is to be paid into the reserve fund when the cumulative balance of the 

reserve fund in the given year exceeds 15 percent of the regular operating revenues for 

the Board of Health approved budget for the mandatory cost shared programs and 

services; and, 

 

All lease revenues, received by the Board of Health under leases of part of its premises, 

in excess of the actual operating cost attributable to the leased premises, shall be paid 

annually into the reserve fund; and, 

 

 

Page 10 of 138



Minutes  

Board of Health Meeting 

June 17, 2015   

Page 4 

 

Any over-expenditures in any year shall be paid firstly from the reserve fund and only 

when the reserve fund shall have been exhausted will the Board of Health seek 

additional funds from the Municipalities to pay for such over-expenditures; and, 

 

Any excess revenues in any year resulting from an over estimate of expenses shall be 

paid into the reserve fund; and, 

 

The Medical Officer of Health/Chief Executive Officer shall in each year direct the 

allocation of excess funds to such reserve fund as the Medical Officer of Health shall 

decide. 

 CARRIED. 

   

2015-92 Moved: S. Jensen 

 Seconded: I. Frazier 

 THAT the Board approves Policy 02-05-065 Algoma Board of Health Reserve Fund as 

presented. 

 CARRIED. 

 

b) Policy for Mitigating Risk of Duplicate Payments – Accounts Payable Invoice Entry 

c) Policy for Mitigating Risk of Errors Through the Disbursement of Funds – Accounts Payable 

Process 

These two policies were shared for the information of the Board. The changes made to the policy are on the 

recommendations from the risk assessment shared with the Board in May as previously identified during the 

Accountability Agreement submission process. 

 

d) Criminal Reference Checks - Contractors 

At the last Board meeting the Board requested staff to check with other publically funded agencies, both 

provincial and local, to determine what the practice is for contractors/service providers when the service 

provider does not provide services to APH’s clients nor has access to its finances or employee information. 

J. Pino reported that the results from the provincial and local scan were mixed. Based on this the Board 

decided to leave the policy as is and revisit the policy during the regular Board policy review process. 

 

7) REPORTS OF COMMITTEES 

a) Finance and Audit Committee  

Mr. Frazier, chair of the Finance and Audit Committee, updated the Board on the meeting from June 11, 

2015. He noted that the Committee’s recommendation to staff to create a form that will enable consistent 

approval process of credit card expenditures for the agency has been complied with. The Finance and Audit 

Committee will continue to meet over the summer.  

 

b) Governance Standing Committee 

Mr. Frazier took the role of chair while Mr. Mason, Chair of the Governance Committee, gave the report 

from the Governance Standing Committee. 

 

Mr. Mason reported to the Board that the Governance Standing Committee met for the first time on June 15, 

2015. The Committee reviewed the MOH/CEO recruitment process. Other items on the agenda were the 

APH Performance Monitoring Plan and Terms of Reference. Mr. Mason asked the Board members to review 

the Performance Monitoring Plan, its indicators and the Terms of Reference. Feedback is to be sent to C. 

Luukkonen by the middle of July. C. Luukkonen will send out a reminder email to Board members. 

Page 11 of 138



Minutes  

Board of Health Meeting 

June 17, 2015   

Page 5 

 

8) REPORTS OF OFFICERS/PROGRAM MANAGERS: 

a) Medical Officer of Health/Chief Executive Officer:   

The MOH/CEO report included in the Board package was reviewed. Dr. Peter Donnelly, President and CEO 

of Public Health Ontario, visited the health unit on June 11, 2015. Staff had the opportunity to attend a 

presentation by Dr. Donnelly. Dr. Donnelly indicated that was impressed by the work done at APH.  

 

June 7-9, 2015 was the annual alPHa Conference in Ottawa, ON. Dr. Sutcliffe is the president of alPHa and 

facilitated the conference. Ms. Kirby, former Board member, and S. Laclé attended on behalf of APH. S. 

Laclé encouraged Board members to attend the Conference. It is a very good opportunity for Board member 

networking, orientation and training. 

 

Other items highlighted in the report included: 

  Community Mental Health Program received funding for a Peer Support position 

  Breastfeeding Friendly Initiative - APH received official designation in January 2010 and will be 

applying for re-designation in the fall of 2015 

 MOH recruitment process and results 

 

Dr. Sutcliffe reminded the Board that alPHa is a good resource and support for on-going training for Board 

members. Also discussed that her contract is reviewed on a monthly basis but will need to have Ministry 

approval if the appointment is for more than six months. She reminded the Board that will need to be 

addressed soon as July represents the six month mark. 

2015-93 Moved: D. Thompson 

 Seconded: C. Martin 

  THAT the report of the Acting Medical Officer of Health and Acting Chief Executive 

Officer for the month of June 2015 be adopted as presented. 

 CARRIED. 

   

b) Chief Financial Officer/Director of Operations:  

i) Financial Statements for the Period Ending: April 30, 2015 

J. Pino reviewed the Financial Report that was included in the Board package. A revised page 4 was 

provided at the beginning of the Board meeting.  

 

Mr. Frazier informed the Board that the Finance and Audit Committee reviewed the reports on June 11, 2015 

and the Committee supports the report as presented. 

 

2015-94 Moved: C. Martin 

 Seconded: D. Thompson 

 THAT the Board accepts the Algoma Public Health Financial Statements for the period 

ending May 31, 2015 for the following programs: 

Public Health Programs 

 Public Health 

 Public Health (Capital) 

Community Health Programs 

 Healthy Babies Healthy Children 

 HBHC Screening Liaisons 

 Child Benefits Ontario Works 

 Dental Benefits Ontario Works 

Page 12 of 138



Minutes  

Board of Health Meeting 

June 17, 2015   

Page 6 

 

  Early Years Development (NP Clinic11) 

 Miscellaneous Calendar  

 Healthy Community Partnership 

 Northern Ontario Fruit and Vegetable Program 

 Brighter Futures for Children 

 Infant and Child Development 

 Preschool Speech and Language 

 Nurse Practitioner 

 Genetics Counselling 

 Community Mental Health 

 Community Alcohol and Drug Assessment 

 Remedial Measures 

 Diabetes 

 Miscellaneous Fiscal 

 CARRIED. 

   

2015-95 Moved: I. Frazier 

 Seconded: C. Martin 

 THAT the financial reporting for the period ending May 31, 2015 be adopted as 

presented. 

 CARRIED. 

   

9) New Business/General Business 

a) Draft Bylaw 2015-1 – To Provide for the Management of Property 

A new bylaw on providing for the management of property was presented. Board members suggested minor 

changes to the bylaw. The amendments will be made by the Board secretary and a final copy will be 

provided to the Board members to be included in their binders. 

2015-96 Moved: D. Thompson 

 Seconded: I. Frazier 

 WHEREAS, the Health Protection and Promotion Act states that a board of health may 

acquire and hold real property for the purposes of carrying out the functions of the 

board and may sell, exchange, lease, mortgage or otherwise charge or dispose of real 

property owned by it. R.S.O. 1990, c.H.7, s. 52 (3), and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Health owns real property (294 Willow Avenue, Sault Ste. 

Marie, On) as of the 26th day of May, 2014 based on the Surrender of Lease 

Agreement between the Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie, The Board of 

Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit and the Sault College of Applied Arts 

and Technology, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Health Protection and Promotion Act (current 56. (1)) require that a 

board of health shall pass a by-law respecting (a) the management of its property,    

 

THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of Health approves the Property 

Management by-law 2015-1 dated the 17th, of June 2015 as presented. 

 CARRIED. 

 

 

Page 13 of 138



Minutes  

Board of Health Meeting 

June 17, 2015   

Page 7 

 

b) Revised Bylaw 95-2 – To Provide for the Banking and Finance 

Board of Health bylaws and policies are reviewed every two years. The Finance and Audit committee 

recommended the changes to Bylaw 95-2. J. Pino reviewed these changes with the Board. Many questions 

were asked. The bylaw speaks to registering the health unit as a charitable organization. Questions were 

asked if we have a number and how this works. J. Pino explained that we only need to register once. Also a 

question was asked about maximizing the HST. J. Pino explained that every two years the health unit 

procures the service of an auditor that reviews our invoices and submits for any rebates. Changes to be made 

and final copy to be provided to Board members for their binders. 

2015-97 Moved: I. Frazier 

 Seconded: D. Thompson 

 THAT the Board accepts the changes to Bylaw 95-2 as amended. 

 CARRIED. 

Mr. Mason called for any nominations for position of 4
th

 signing authority. Mr. Mason nominates the vice-

chair Mr. Frazier. As there are no other nominations. Mr. Frazier is acclaimed. 

2015-98 Moved: C. Martin 

 Seconded: D. Thompson 

 WHEREAS By-Law 95-2 identifies that signing authorities for all accounts shall be 

restricted to: 

i) the Chair of the Board of Health 

ii) one other Board member, designated by Resolution 

iii) the Medical Officer of Health/Chief Executive Officer 

iv) the Chief Financial Officer; and 

 

WHEREAS the Chair of the Board of Health, the Medical Officer of Health/Chief 

Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have previously been designated 

with signing authority; 

 

SO BE IT RESOLVED that signing authority is provided to Mr. Ian Frazier as the one 

other Board member, designated by Resolution until the next election of Officers. 

 CARRIED. 

 

c) Revised Bylaw 95-3 – To Provide for the Duties of the Auditor 

J. Pino highlighted the changes in job titles within the bylaw. As per the Health Protection and Promotion 

Act, auditors for public health units are the auditors for the largest municipality. In the case of Algoma 

Public Health, the largest municipality is Sault Ste. Marie. Final copies will be provided for the Board 

member to include in their binders. 

2015-99 Moved: C. Martin 

 Seconded: D. Thompson 

 THAT the Board accepts the changes to Bylaw 95-3 as presented. 

 CARRIED. 

 

d) Public Health and First Nations Communities  

S. Laclé presented the First Nations report titled MNO BMAADZIIDAA – The Good Life for information. 

The report was included in the Board package. This report is based on a collaborative project between APH 

and North Shore Tribal Council First Nations. One-time funding had been provided for this project.  

2015-100 Moved: C. Martin 

 Seconded: D. Thompson 

 THAT the Board of Health for Algoma receive the report MNO BMAADZIIDAA – 

Page 14 of 138



Minutes  

Board of Health Meeting 

June 17, 2015   

Page 8 

 

The Good Life” for information; and 

 

THAT the Board of Health for Algoma support continued conversation-dialogue to 

build relationships with First Nations communities in the Algoma district as referenced 

in the recommendations in the report. 

 CARRIED. 

 

10) CORRESPONDENCE/ITEMS FOR INFORMATION:   

a) Letter to Honourable Kathleen Wynne from Northwestern Health Unit Re: Bill 45 Making 

Healthier Choices Act Letter to Hon. Hoskins from Perth District Health Unit Re: Smoke-Free Multi-

Unit Housing 

b) Letter from Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care Re: Amendments to the Protocol under the Ontario 

Public Health Standards - Institutional/Facility Outbreak Prevention and Control Protocol, 2015 

c) Letter to Various Canadian and Ontario Ministers Re: Basic Income Guarantee 

d) Disclosure of the KPMG audit (May 19th, 2015)  

e) Correspondence to Mayor Provenzano and all Municipal Mayors & Reeves 

Mr. Mason reviewed the various correspondence items that were received for the Board. Copies were 

provided in the Board package. S. Laclé highlighted for the Board 10d) Disclosure of the KPMG audit.  

 

11) ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 

a) Making Healthier Choices Act (MHCA) Bill 45 Good News 

b) Algoma Public Health Annual Report 2014 (Report Provided at the BOH meeting) 

c) Policy Criminal Reference Check for Staff 

d) Policy Complaints and Concerns 

e) Updates to the Board of Health E-Learning Module 

S. Laclé highlighted 11b) APH Annual Report was distributed at the beginning of the meeting. The report 

showcases examples of the work we do and features community partners and clients. Following the Board 

meeting this evening it will be posted on our website and shared with our stakeholders, ministry agencies 

and our community partners. Also highlighted was 11e). alPHa has an e-learning module available to all 

BoH members. S. Laclé strongly recommends that all Board members review the module over the summer 

as an important part of their Board orientation process. 

 

Questions were asked regarding 11d) Policy Complaints and Concerns regarding the process and steps taken. 

During the interview process for Mr. Scott’s report he identified some areas of concern. Changes were made 

in response to his verbal recommendations and a new policy was developed. Specifically Mr. Scott 

recommended that all staff have the opportunity to express their complaint to their manager or their Director 

of Human Resources at any step of the process. Further recommendations were made by the Board members. 

 

12) ADDENDUM:   

2015-101 Moved: D. Thompson 

 Seconded: C. Martin 

 THAT the Board accepts the items on the addendum. 

a) Governance Standing Committee Terms of Reference 

b) Performance Monitoring Plan 

c) Finance and Audit Committee Minutes dates May 20, 2015 

d) Assessor’s Report on Algoma Public Health (April 24, 2015) 

e) Ministry Actions and Executive Summary Assessment Report (June 16, 2015) 

f) MOHLTC Letter to Chair, Board of Health, Algoma Public Health (June 16, 

Page 15 of 138



Minutes  

Board of Health Meeting 

June 17, 2015   

Page 9 

 

2015) 

g) Algoma Public Health Reaction to Release of Assessor’s Report (June 16, 2015) 

h) Board of Health Member Letter of Resignation (June 16, 2015) 

i) Board of Health Member Letter of Resignation (June 17, 2015) 

j) Board of Health Member Letter of Resignation (June 17, 2015) 

 CARRIED. 

 

a) Governance Standing Committee Terms of Reference   

Mr. Mason spoke to this item during his report to the Board in 7b). 

 

b) Performance Monitoring Plan 

Mr. Mason spoke to this item during his report to the Board in 7b). 

 

c) Finance and Audit Committee Minutes dates May 20, 2015 – For Information 

 

d) Assessor’s Report on Algoma Public Health (April 24, 2015) 

e) Ministry Actions and Executive Summary Assessment Report (June 16, 2015) 

f) MOHLTC Letter to Chair, Board of Health, Algoma Public Health (June 16, 2015) 

g) Algoma Public Health Reaction to Release of Assessor’s Report (June 16, 2015) 

Copies of the Assessor’s Report, Executive Summary, letter to the Board chair and news release were 

provided for the Board members at the beginning of the meeting in their addendum package. Mr. Frazier 

requested that the Board of Health be provided with a copy of the previous Ministry report Provincial 

Assessment Report (2014) and also the KPMG Report stemming from the June 2013 incident. 

 

Questions were asked regarding the recommendations in Mr. Scott’s report. Dr. Sutcliffe acknowledged that 

there are still many questions outstanding and that the Executive Committee will be participating in a 

teleconference with the Ministry late Monday to discuss expectations and anticipated process changes. 

Special Board meetings will be arranged, as required, prior to the regularly scheduled meeting in September.  

 

Dr. Sutcliffe addressed the recommendation in the report for a merger between APH & SDHU. At this time 

the option is still there but the Ministry is focusing on the rebuilding the Board as a skills-based Board. 

 

To date we have received three letters of resignation from Board members. Copies of the letters were 

included in the addendum package. Mr. Mason acknowledged that it is with regret that he accepts the letters 

of resignations. 

 

The Board chair requested that a letter be sent to the Sudbury & District Health Unit’s Board of Health 

expressing the Board’s appreciation for their continued support to APH through the last 5 months. 

 

13) THAT THE BOARD GO INTO COMMITTEE: 7:40 pm 

Agenda items: 

a) Adoption of previous in-committee minutes dated May 15, 2015 

b) Proposed or Pending Rental Property 

c) Solicitor Client Privilege 

d) Labour Negotiations 

2015-102 Moved: I. Frazier 

 Seconded: D. Thompson 

 THAT the Board goes into committee. 

Page 16 of 138



Minutes  

Board of Health Meeting 

June 17, 2015   

Page 10 

 

 CARRIED. 

Attending staff, executive members and media left the meeting for the In-committee session. 

 

14) THAT THE BOARD GO INTO OPEN MEETING: 9:13 pm 

2015-104 Moved: I. Frazier 

 Seconded: D. Thompson 

 THAT the Board goes into open meeting. 

 CARRIED. 

 

15) Resolution Resulting From In-Committee Session 

There were three resolutions resulting from In-committee. 

2015-105 Moved: C. Martin 

 Seconded: D. Thompson 

 THEREFORE be it resolved: 

 

THAT the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit (APH) enter into a 

lease agreement with Elliot Lake and North Shore Corporation for Business 

Development (ELNOS); and, 

 

THAT the Board of Health authorizes the allocation of the final insurance settlement 

funds to be used for required renovations/leasehold improvements, and  

 

THAT for any renovations/leasehold amounts above the final insurance settlement 

funds up to a total loan of $600,000 ,the Board of Health authorizes the acquisition of a 

short term loan; the term will coincide with the date that APH’s mortgage comes due in 

September 2016, and 

 

THAT the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit approve refinancing 

Algoma Public Health’s current term loan(mortgage) on its due date of September 1, 

2016 to incorporate any outstanding amounts owing on the short term loan, and  

 

THAT the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit, as per the 

parameters of the scope/duties of APH’s Finance Committee, direct the Finance 

Committee to review the project and its developments.  This shall include, but not 

limited to, participating in the Request for Proposal process of the 

Architectural/Engineering Services,  monitoring project costs, scope and schedule.   

 CARRIED. 

   

2015-106 Moved: D. Thompson 

 Seconded: I. Frazier 

 Whereas on May 8th, 2015 APH received a Freedom of Information (FOI) request for 

the KPMG Forensic Audit (2015), and  

 

Whereas the Board has considered its obligations under Municipal Freedom of 

Information and Protection of Privacy Act (MFIPPA) to disclose as much information 

as possible that is not exempt, keeping in mind the purposes of the Act which promotes 

the accountability and transparency of government institutions, such as APH, and 

Page 17 of 138



Minutes  

Board of Health Meeting 

June 17, 2015   

Page 11 

 

Whereas the Board of Health has considered legal advice received, 

 

Therefore be it resolved that the Board of Health having considered option 1- Non-

Disclosure and No Notification to Third Parties and Option 2 - Disclosure and 

Notification to Third Parties directs staff to action Option 2 - Disclosure and 

Notification to Third Parties. 

 CARRIED. 

 

2015-107 Moved: I. Frazier 

 Seconded: C. Martin 

 THAT the Board of Health ratifies the memorandum of settlement that was ratified by 

the nurses on June 15, 2015 

 

16) ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
Next Board Meeting: 

Wednesday, September 16 , 2015 

Prince Room, 3rd Floor, APH SSM 

 

 

 

17) THAT THE MEETING ADJOURN: 9:42 pm 

2015-108 Moved: C. Martin 

 Seconded: D. Thompson 

 THAT the meeting adjourns. 

 CARRIED. 

 
 

 

 __________________________________________   __________________________________________  

  Lee Mason, Chair    Christina Luukkonen, Secretary 

 

 

 __________________________________________   __________________________________________  

 Date Date 

Page 18 of 138



 

ALGOMA PUBLIC HEALTH SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD 

JUNE 29, 2015 - 4:00 PM 

SAULT STE MARIE ROOM B, 1
ST

 FLOOR, APH SAULT STE. MARIE 

MINUTES 

PRESENT: Ian Frazier Candace Martin Lee Mason  

     

REGRETS:     

     

PRESENT BY 

TELECONFERENCE: 

Dr. Penny 

Sutcliffe 

Sue Jensen Dennis 

Thompson 

 

   

OFFICIALS 

PRESENT: 

Acting Chief Executive Officer Sandra Laclé 

  Chief Financial Officer Justin Pino 

    Director of Human Resources and Corporate Services Antoniette Tomie 
   

  Director of Community Services Laurie Zeppa 

   Board Secretary Christina Luukkonen  
   

   

1) CALL TO ORDER  
Mr. Mason called the meeting to order at 4:01 pm. 

 

2) DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
Mr. Mason called for conflicts of interest; none were presented. 

 

3) ADOPTION OF AGENDA dated June 29, 2015   

2015-109 Moved: I. Frazier 

 Seconded: C. Martin 

 THAT the agenda items dated June 29, 2015 be adopted as circulated. 

 CARRIED. 

 

4) APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES N/A 

 

5) BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 

c) Management Update and Recommendation: Provincial Assessor’s Report – MOH/CEO 

Recruitment  

S. Laclé summarized the briefing note provided in the Board package. Ms. Laclé’s secondment agreement is 

ending at the end of August and she will be returning to the Sudbury & District Health Unit (SDHU) at that 

time. A resolution was presented to the Board to issue a Request For Proposals (RFP) to engage an interim 

executive search firm to provide APH with an interim chief executive officer. Advertising to date has been for a 

MOH/CEO combined position. 

2015-110 Moved: D. Thompson 

 Seconded: C. Martin 

 THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Health for the District of 

Algoma Health Unit delegate authority to its Chair and Vice-Chair to work with the 

Acting MOH and Acting CEO to issue a request for proposals/quotes (RFP/RFQ) 

for an interim executive search firm to provide Algoma Public Health with an 

interim chief executive officer beginning September 1, 2015 or sooner for a period 

Page 19 of 138



Minutes  

Special Meeting of the Board 

June 29, 2015   

Page 2 

 

of up to a year, pending the successful appointment by the Board and approval by 

the Minister and Chief Medical Officer of Health of a Medical Officer of 

Health/Chief Executive Officer, and  

 

FURTHER THAT the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit 

delegate authority to its Chair and Vice-Chair to ensure the appointment of an 

Acting Medical Officer of Health per section 69 of the Health Protection and 

Promotion Act 

 CARRIED 

 

6) ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 

f) Board of Health Member Resignation Letter (June 18, 2015) 

 

7) ADDENDUM:   

Mr. Mason reminded Board members of the upcoming Finance and Audit Committee Meeting on July 22, 2015 

at 10:30 am and the Governance Standing Committee Meeting on August 24 at 1:00 pm. Board members were 

also reminded to send in their feedback for the Governance Standing Committee Terms of Reference and the 

Draft Performance Management Plan. 

 

8) THAT THE MEETING ADJOURN:  pm 

2015-111 Moved: I. Frazier 

 Seconded: C. Martin 

 THAT the meeting adjourns. 

 CARRIED. 

 
 

 

 

 

 __________________________________________   __________________________________________  

  Lee Mason, Chair    Christina Luukkonen, Secretary 

 

 

 __________________________________________   __________________________________________  

 Date Date 

 

Page 20 of 138



 

ALGOMA PUBLIC HEALTH SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD 

AUGUST 6, 2015 

PRINCE ROOM, 3
RD

 FLOOR, APH SAULT STE. MARIE 

MINUTES 

 
PRESENT: Ian Frazier Lee Mason   

     

TELECONF: Sue Jensen Candace Martin Dennis Thompson  

   

OFFICIALS 

PRESENT: 

Acting Chief Executive Officer Sandra Laclé 

Director of Human Resources and Corporate Services Antoniette Tomie 

 Acting Director of Clinical Services Jonathon Bouma 

 Board Secretary Christina Luukkonen  

   

OFFICIALS 

REGRETS: 

Acting Medical Officer of Health  

Chief Financial Officer 

Director of Community Services 

Dr. Penny Sutcliffe 

Justin Pino  

Laurie Zeppa 

   

1) CALL TO ORDER  
Mr. Mason, Board Chair called the meeting to order at 5:03pm 

 

2) DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
Mr. Mason called for conflicts of interest; none were presented. 

 

3) ADOPTION OF AGENDA dated August 6, 2015   

2015-112 Moved: C. Martin 

 Seconded: I. Frazier 

 THAT the agenda items dated August 6, 2015 be adopted as circulated. 

 CARRIED. 

 

4) ADOPTION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING – N/A 

 

5) NEW BUSINESS/GENERAL BUSINESS 

There was no new business to report. 

 

6) BUSINESS ARISING 

a) Elliot Lake Office 

Mr. Frazier, Chair of the Finance and Audit Committee summarized the briefing note provided in the 

Board package regarding the new Elliot Lake Office. On July 22, 2015 the Finance and Audit Committee 

met to open all bids that were submitted in response to the RFP issued. David ELLIS Architect 

Incorporated was the successful bid.  

 

b) Governance 

S. Laclé summarized the briefing note provided in the Board package regarding the meetings that have 

taken place with the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. A letter was sent to Mr. Mason, Board 

Chair, informing him that a compliance checklist for the Organizational Standards needs to be completed 

and submitted to the Ministry by August 21, 2015. A copy of the letter and form were included in the 

Board package. 

 

 

Page 21 of 138



Minutes  

Special Meeting of the Board  

August 6, 2015   

Page 2 

 

Mr. Mason introduced a Board Competency Matrix that he would like all Board members to complete. A 

copy of the matrix was included in the Board package. The matrix is a self-evaluation of 

skills/competencies and will help assess the Board’s strengths and weaknesses to assist with the 

appointment of future Board members. Completed forms need to be submitted to C. Luukkonen by 

August 21, 2015. 

 

Questions were asked by Board members and answered to their satisfaction. 

 

7) ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 

There were no items for information. 

 

8) THAT THE BOARD GO INTO COMMITTEE: 5:30 pm 

2015-113 Moved: I. Frazier 

 Seconded: S. Jensen 

 THAT the Board goes into committee. 

 CARRIED. 

J. Bouma left the meeting at this time. A. Tomie stayed for the in-committee session. 

 

9) THAT THE BOARD GO INTO OPEN MEETING: 6:30 pm 

2015-115 Moved: S. Jensen 

 Seconded: C. Martin 

 THAT the Board goes into open meeting. 

 CARRIED. 

 

Resolution Resulting From In-Committee Session 

There is one resolutions resulting from In-committee. 

2015-116 Moved: I. Frazier 

 Seconded: D. Thompson 

 THAT the Board of Health for Algoma Public Health appoints Tony Hanlon, PhD 

as its Interim Chief Executive Officer under the terms and conditions specified in 

the employment agreement dated o this day, and    

 FURTHER that the Board of Health recognized Ms. Sandra Laclé for her 

leadership as Acting Chief Executive Officer and looks forward to establishing a 

positive and productive working relationship with Tony Hanlon in this role 

 CARRIED. 

Mr. Hanlon expressed his appreciation for the opportunity to work with Algoma Public Health Board 

and all employees. 

 

S. Laclé thanked the Board for their governance leadership and support during her time here. 

 

10) ADDENDUM 

No items on the addendum 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22 of 138



Minutes  

Special Meeting of the Board  

August 6, 2015   

Page 3 

 

11) THAT THE MEETING ADJOURN: 6:37 pm 

2015-117 Moved: S. Jensen 

 Seconded: I. Frazier 

 THAT the meeting adjourns. 

 CARRIED. 
 

 

 

 

 

 __________________________________________   __________________________________________  

  Lee Mason, Chair    Christina Luukkonen, Secretary 

 

 

 __________________________________________   __________________________________________  

 Date Date 

 

Page 23 of 138



 

Form # 00002 (2005/01) 

BOARD OF HEALTH FOR ALGOMA PUBLIC HEALTH 
GOVERNANCE STANDING COMMITTEE 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
O: September 22, 2015 

 

The following Terms of Reference are in accordance with By-Law No. 95-1. The Committee is 

advisory to the Board unless the Board expressly delegates authority to the Committee on a particular 

matter.  

 

Name: Board of Health Governance Standing Committee 

Purpose/Goal: To fulfill the following functions on behalf of the Board:  

 Governance – To support the Board in fulfilling its commitment to and 

responsibility for sound and effective governance of Algoma Public Health 

 Nominations - To manage the process to identify potential provincial 

nominees for the Board to recommend for appointment to the Board 

(subject to the requirements of the Health Protection and Promotion Act 

and Provincial Public Appointments Process) 

 Orientation and Education – To support the Board by ensuring that new 

Directors receive adequate and appropriate orientation and that all 

Directors are provided ongoing education to assist them in fulfilling their 

duties effectively.  

 Performance accountability – To support the Board in overseeing key 

elements required to achieve its vision and mission.  

Chair: The Governance Standing Committee shall elect a chair amongst them.  The 

Board Vice-Chair may be appointed as Committee chair.  

The Committee chair is responsible for: establishing Committee agendas; 

conducting the meetings; liaison with the Board Chair, the Board and the 

MOH/CEO; reporting to the Board on the activities of the Committee and 

presenting Committee recommendations to the Board.  

The Committee chair may be appointed for a term that is not longer than his or 

her term as a Director and may be reappointed for as many terms as the Board 

determines.  

Recorder: The secretary to the Board will act as recorder for the Governance Standing 

Committee. 

Roles & 

Responsibilities: 
These Governance functions are fulfilled through the following roles and 

responsibilities:  

Governance Effectiveness 

 Enable the Board to meet its fiduciary obligations by defining APH’s 

approach to governance and supporting processes and practices that 

promote a leading-edge governance culture; 

 Recommend the development and oversee the implementation of 

governance structures, processes and protocols that enable the Board to 

fulfill its governance role effectively;  

 Support the Board of Directors in fostering a positive relationship with its 

key stakeholders; 

 Support a high standard of Board conduct.  

Page 24 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
5a) Attachment



 

Form # 00002 (2005/01) 

Mandate  

 Recommend, where appropriate, changes to the mandate of the Board of 

Directors, each of its Committees, the Board Chair and committee chairs 

based on the needs of APH and evolving governance standards (subject 

to requirements of the HPPA and Municipal Acts). 

Board of Health By-laws, policies and procedures  

 Review on a regular basis, and at a minimum of every two years, and 

make recommendations to the Board. 

Evaluation  

 Recommend and oversee the implementation of a governance review/ 

evaluation process regarding the performance of the Board, the Board 

Chair, committee chairs, committees and individual Directors;  

 Recommend procedures for the ongoing assessment of Board and 

Committee meeting effectiveness;  

 Recommend changes to address effectiveness issues arising out of these 

evaluations;  

 Assess the adequacy of the quality and timeliness of information provided 

to the Board of Directors and its Committees and make recommendations 

to the Board of Directors for change where appropriate.  

Performance Accountability 

 Approve and monitor various measures of performance accountability on 

a regular basis. 

MOH/CEO review 

 Support the Chair of the Board of Health with MOH/CEO review as 

requested; 

 Oversee succession planning for the MOH/CEO, including development 

of a clear and transparent process to recruit and select a future 

MOH/CEO. 

Nominations  

 Recommend, in consultation with the Board Chair, nominees for all Board 

Committees including Committee chairs . 

Orientation and Education  

 Ensure that there is an appropriate orientation and education program for 

new Directors and continuing education for all Directors including making 

recommendations on methods to improve Directors’ knowledge of 

Algoma Public Health and their responsibilities as Directors;  

 Oversee the implementation of orientation and education programs for 

Directors to ensure these are undertaken effectively.  

Other  

 The Committee shall study and make recommendations to the Board on 

any matter as directed by the Board.  

Delegation of 

Authority from the 

Board: 

No authority is delegated by the Board through these terms of reference. 

However, the Board may from time to time delegate specific responsibilities to 

the Committee by resolution of the Board.  

Page 25 of 138



 

Form # 00002 (2005/01) 

Reporting and 

Accountability to the 

Board: 

The Committee will keep brief decision minutes of its meetings in which shall be 

recorded all matters considered at each meeting. These minutes will be 

circulated to the full Board once approved by the Committee.  

The Committee chair will report to the Board on recommendations from the 

Committee, including a brief outline of the issue, the options considered, the 

conclusions and recommendations arrived at and the implications and risks 

associated with the recommendations. In the absence of the Committee chair, 

this responsibility may be delegated to another Director member of the 

Committee or to staff.  

Membership: The Committee shall have a minimum of three and a maximum of five members, 

all of whom shall be Directors. The Board Vice-Chair normally shall be a member 

of the Committee. The Board Chair may member of the Committee. Chairs of 

other standing committees normally would not be appointed as members of the 

Committee. 

Committee members will be appointed for a term not exceeding their term as a 

Director and may be reappointed at the discretion of the Board  

Reporting to: Algoma Public Health Board of Health 

Frequency: The Committee will meet at least four times a year. Meetings may be more 

frequent in the first year. 

The Committee may meet on other occasions at the call of the Committee chair.  

Committee 

Operations: 
Quorum for Committee meetings is a majority of the members of the Committee.  

The Committee shall operate in accordance with the procedures for Board 

meetings as set out in By-Law No. 95-1  

The Committee may, with the approval of the Board, establish sub-committees. 

Distribution of 

Minutes: 
Distribute to committee members and the Board of Health members. 

 

   

   

Signature of Board of Health Chair  Date 

Page 26 of 138



 

Form # 00002 (2005/01) 

TERMS OF REFERENCE MEMBERSHIP 

 Name Position Agency 

1 Tony Hanlon CEO Algoma Public Health 

2 Antoniette Tomie 
Director of Human 
Resources and 
Corporate Services 

Algoma Public Health 

3 Ian Frazier Board Member 
Board of Health for 
Algoma Public Health 

4 Lee Mason Board Member 
Board of Health for 
Algoma Public Health 

5 Candace Martin Board Chair 
Board of Health for 
Algoma Public Health 

Ad hoc (performance monitoring item) 

7    

8    

9    

10    

11    

12    

13    

14    

15    

 

Page 27 of 138



 

Form # 00002 (2005/01) 

Guide for Completing Terms of Reference 

 Please complete each section of the terms of reference (TOR) form.   

 None of the sections should be blank. 

 Ensure a copy of the previous TOR accompanies the newly edited TOR with the changes 

highlighted. 

 

Name: Indicate the name of the committee 

Purpose/Goal: Indicate the end result that the committee's plan is intended to 

achieve.  

Use round bullets to identify individual points. 

Objectives: Previously Goals/Responsibilities 

Indicate the activities, objectives, responsibilities that the plan 

will take in order to achieve the goal, e.g., To discuss…To 

review…To create…To facilitate, etc.  

Use round bullets to identify individual points. 

Chair: Indicate position title or if the recorder rotates, indicate: 

'Rotation System'. 

Recorder: Indicate position title or if the recorder rotates, indicate: 

'Rotation System'. 

Membership: Indicate position titles not specific names. If necessary, 

complete the Terms of Reference Membership and attach to 

the TOR. 

Include the Chair’s title in this section.  If the chair rotates, 

indicate: ‘Chair rotates’ 

Reporting to: Indicate position title or name of committee, e.g., Management 

Committee, to whom the committee reports and who will act on 

committee recommendations/ suggestions. 

Frequency: Indicate the number of times the committee will meet, e.g., 

once per month for one-hour session.   

Quorum is not required to hold a meeting. 

Term: Indicate the length of time members remain on the committee, 

e.g. membership will change every two years. 

Decision-making Format: Indicate consensus/ majority/ not applicable, etc.  Consensus is 

preferred where possible.   

Quorum is required (50 percent participation plus 1 individual). 

Distribution of Minutes: Indicate the 'Reporting to' individual(s), committee, etc. along 

with who will benefit from the Committee. 

Membership will automatically appear. 

 

 

Page 28 of 138



 

O: September 22, 2015 
 

Algoma Public Health 

Performance Monitoring Plan 

2015-2017 

 

Introduction 

This performance framework provides an overarching view of Algoma Public Health’s key 

areas of performance in fulfillment of its strategic plan and mandate. 

APH’s performance is assessed in relation to a defined set of indicators and associated 

performance measures. The development of indicators is an evergreen process. As 

implementation plans are developed and refined for each of the organizational standards, 

performance measures will continue to be developed and or refined in order to be able to 

report on APH’s progress towards meeting the goals. Similarly as new program accountability 

indicators are introduced they will be included to report on APH’s progress towards meeting 

its program goals. 

Performance in public health is often challenging to describe using quantitative methods or 

numbers alone. The performance framework includes qualitative measures, such as 

narratives or impact stories related to each of the strategic directions. 

The Algoma Public Health Performance Monitoring Plan will be reviewed every 2 years by 

the Board of Health.  It will be the responsibility of the Governance Committee to ensure this 

review takes place.   

  

Page 29 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
5b) Attachment



 

O: September 22, 2015 
 

Algoma Public Health’s Performance Framework  

 

 

 

  

 

Vision 

Together, we  
create and sustain  

health communities 

Mission 

Together with our communities, 
Algoma Public Health is a leader in 
promoting and protecting health 

and well-being 

Values 

Excellence, Respect, Accountability & 
Transparency and Collaboration 

Strategic Directions 

Improve Health Equity, Collaborate Effectively, Be 
Accountable and Enhance Employee Engagement 

Organizational Standards Program Standards 

QUALITATIVE 

QUANITATIVE 

Page 30 of 138



 

O: September 22, 2015 
 

Performance Reporting Schedule 

Qualitative reports or narratives will describe through stories the impact of the strategic 

directions on programming at APH. Impact stories will be reviewed by the Governance 

Committee and presented to the Board of Health by the Governance Committee chair, or 

delegate, for information in October and January of each year. 

An annual quantitative reports or numbers dashboard will be reviewed by the Governance 

Committee and presented to the Board of Health, by the Governance Committee chair, or 

delegate, for information in March of each year.  

Time Line  

The MOH/CEO will recommend performance/accountability indicators for the Governance 

Committee’s review and consideration. For its inaugural report, the following indicators are 

recommended for the Governance Committee’s consideration. 

Strategic Directions – Qualitative Report (Narratives or Stories) 

1. Improve Health Equity – a descriptor of how a team improved health equity 

2. Collaborate Effectively – a descriptor of how staff collaborated effectively 

3. Be Accountable –  an example of how the organization has been accountable 

4. Enhance Employee Engagement – a descriptor from staff of how they have engaged 

 

Note: throughout this document staff refers to staff and management: all employees of 

Algoma Public Health 

  

October 
Qualitative 

Report 

(Narrative) 

Strategic 
Directions 

 1, 2, 3, & 4 

January 

Qualitative 
Report 

(Narrative) 

Strategic 
Directions  

1, 2, 3, & 4 

March 

Quanitative 
Report 

(Dashboard) 

Organizational 
Standards  

Program 
Standards (all) 

Page 31 of 138



 

O: September 22, 2015 
 

Organizational Standards – Quantitative/Statistical Report – A Dashboard 

1. Leadership and Trustee Excellence  

i. BOH Commitment Index.  Four measures of commitment: uninterrupted 

BOH membership, attendance of BOH members at meetings, quorum at 

meetings, completion of the annual BOH self-evaluation questionnaire.

 (Baseline year 2015 then annual corresponding with the calendar year) 

     

ii. Number of Program-related Board of Health Motions passed (Baseline year, 

June – December 2015 then annual reporting based on the calendar year) 

 

iii. BOH Member’s Satisfaction Index.  Three measures of satisfaction: 

individual performance, Board processes and overall Board performance. 

(Baseline year 2015.  Then December 2016, December 2017, etc.) 

 

2. Community Engagement and Responsiveness 

i. Website Usage Status (Baseline year, 2015 then annual reporting) 

 

ii. Number of External Partnership Effectiveness Reviews (Baseline year, 

2015) 

 

3. Organizational Excellence  

i. Employee Engagement (Baseline year, 2015, based on Employee 

Engagement results within the Guarding Minds survey then every 3 years) 

 

4. Service Excellence 

i. Emergency Preparedness Index: sub indicators each weighted equally with 

a final score out of 100 (Baseline year, 2016, then annual reporting) 

 

ii. Service Integration (Baseline year, 2015, then annual reporting) 

(1) Number of examples of Community funded Program education and 

referrals integrated into Public Health funded programs.  

(2) Number of examples of Public Health funded Programs education and 

referrals integrated into Community Funded programs.  

Program Standards (OPHS) – Qualitative – Narrative 

1. Health Protection 

i. 16 Health Protection accountability indicators each weighted equally 

based on achievement with agreed upon ministry target with a final score 

out of 100. Reported annually. (Baseline year, 2015, then annual 

reporting) 

 

Page 32 of 138



 

O: September 22, 2015 
 

2. Health Promotion 

i. 7 Health Promotion indicators each weighted equally based on 

achievement with agreed upon ministry target with a final score out of 

100. Reported annually. (Baseline year, 2015, then annual reporting) 

 

ii. 3 indicators each weighted equally based on achievement with agreed 

upon ministry target with a final score out of 100. Reported every 3 

years. (Baseline year, TBD based on data availability and subsequent 

Ministry requirements) 

 

Accountability Agreement Indicators (2014-2016) 
Health Protection 

1. % of high risk food premises inspected once every 4 months while in operation 

2. % of moderate risk food premises inspected once every 6 months while in operation  

3. % of Class A pools inspected while in operation  

4. % of high-risk Small Drinking Water Systems (SDWS) inspections completed for those that are due for re-

inspection  

5. % of public spas inspected while in operation  

6. % of personal services settings inspected annually  

7. % of suspected rabies exposures reported with investigation initiated within 1 day of PHU notification 

8. % of confirmed gonorrhea cases where initiation of follow-up occurred with 2 days  

9. % of confirmed iGAS cases where initiation of follow-up occurred on the same day as receipt of lab 

confirmation of a positive case  

10. % of confirmed gonorrhea cases treated according to recommended Ontario treatment guidelines  

11. % of salmonella cases where one or more risk factor(s) other than “Unknown” was entered into iPHIS  

12. % of influenza vaccine wasted that is stored/administered by the PHU  

13. % of refrigerators storing publicly funded vaccines that have received a completed routine annual cold chain 

inspection (new)  

14. % of school-aged children who have completed immunizations for hepatitis B  

15. % of school-aged children who have completed immunizations for HPV  

16. % of school-aged children who have completed immunizations for meningococcus  

 

Health Promotion ( i) 

1. % of tobacco vendors in compliance with youth access legislation at the time of last inspection  

2. % of secondary schools inspected once per year for compliance with section 10 of the Smoke-Free Ontario 

Act  

3. % of tobacco retailers inspected for compliance with section 3 of the Smoke-Free Ontario Act  

4. % of tobacco retailers inspected once per year for compliance with display, handling and promotion sections 

of the Smoke-Free Ontario Act  

5. Oral Health Assessment and Surveillance: % of all JK, SK and Grade 2 students screened in publicly funded 

schools  

6. Implementation of NutriStep® Preschool Screen  

7. Baby Friendly Initiative Status  

 

 

Health Promotion (ii) 

1. % of population (19+) that exceeds the Low-Risk Drinking Guidelines 

2. Fall-related emergency visits in older adults aged 65+ (rate per 100,000 per year)  

3. % of youth (ages 12-18) who have never smoked a whole cigarette  

 

 

 

Page 33 of 138



 

O: September 22, 2015 
 

Appendix A 
 

2015 Algoma Public Health Board of Health  
Member Self-Evaluation of Performance 

 
As part of this Board’s commitment to good governance, continuous quality improvement, 
compliance with the Ontario Public Health Organizational Standards, and in accordance with  
02-05-000 and 02-05-055 of the Board of Health Manual, all Board members are encouraged to 
individually complete this Self-Evaluation of Performance. Your participation is voluntary. Your 
responses will be kept anonymous and all responses will be presented through aggregated results.  
 
Please complete prior to June 17, 2015, in confidence to the attention of Christina Luukkonen by 
mail, by email at cluukkonen@algomapublichealth.com or by fax at (705) 759-2540. Time will be 
allocated for Board members to complete the survey during the June Board meeting. 

Part 1: Individual Performance 
Compliance with Individual Roles and Responsibilities as a Board of Health Member. 

 Strongly 
Agree 

Agree Disagree 
Strongly 
Disagree 

Not 
Applicable 

1. As a BOH member, I am satisfied with my 
attendance at meetings. 

     

2. As a BOH member, I am satisfied with my 
preparation for meetings.  

     

3. As a BOH member, I am satisfied with my 
participation in meetings. 

     

4. As a BOH member, I understand my roles 
and responsibilities. 

     

5. As a BOH member, I understand current 
public health issues. 

     

6. As a BOH member, I have input into the 
vision, mission and strategic direction of 
the organization. 

     

7. As a BOH member, I am aware and 
represent community perspective during 
board meetings. 

     

8. As a BOH member, I provide input into 
policy development and decision-making. 

     

9. As a BOH member, I represent the 
interests of the organization at all times. 

     

 
Do you have any other comments or suggestions pertaining to your role as a Board of Health member? 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

  

Page 34 of 138



 

O: September 22, 2015 
 

 

Part 2: Board of Health Processes 
Effectiveness of policy and process  

 Strongly 
Agree 

Agree Disagree 
Strongly 
Disagree 

Not 
Applicable 

1. The BOH is compliant with all applicable 
legislation and regulations. 

     

2. The BOH ensures members are aware of 
their roles and responsibilities through 
orientation of new members. 

     

3. The BOH is appropriately informed about 
financial management, procurement 
policies and practice, risk management 
and human resources issues. 

     

4. The BOH holds meetings frequently 
enough to ensure timely decision-making. 

     

5. The BOH bases decision making on access 
to appropriate information with sufficient 
time for deliberations.  

     

6. The BOH is kept apprised of public health 
issues in a timely and effective manner. 

     

7. The BOH sets bylaws and governance 
policies. 

     

8. The BOH remains informed with issues 
pertaining to organizational effectiveness 
through performance monitoring and 
strategic planning. 

     

 

Do you have any other comments or suggestions pertaining to Board of Health policy and process? 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

  

Page 35 of 138



 

O: September 22, 2015 
 

Part 3: Overall Performance of the Board of Health 

 Strongly 
Agree 

Agree Disagree 
Strongly 
Disagree 

Not 
Applicable 

1. The BOH contributes to high 
governance and leadership 
performance 

     

2. The BOH oversees the development 
of the strategic plan 

     

3.  The BOH ensures planning 
processes consider stakeholder and 
community needs. 

     

4. The BOH ensures a climate of 
mutual trust and respect between 
themselves and the Medical Officer 
of Health (MOH/CEO). 

     

5. The BOH as a governing body is 
achieving its strategic outcomes. 

     

 

Do you have any other comments or suggestions pertaining to overall performance of the Board of Health? 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 36 of 138



 
 
 
 

MEDICAL OFFICER OF HEALTH/CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
BOARD REPORT 
September 2015 
 
Prepared by Tony Hanlon Ph.D., CEO and Dr. Penny Sutcliffe, Acting MOH 
 
 
 
 
 
  

7a) Attachment 

Page 37 of 138



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
September 2015 
Page 2 of 8 
 

 
 

2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table of Contents 
  

Summary/Introduction Page 3 

Program Highlights Page 4-6 

Risk Management Page 7 

Partnerships Page 8 

Next Steps Page 8 

 
 
  

Page 38 of 138



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
September 2015 
Page 3 of 8 
 

 
 

3 

 
 

 
 
Dr. Tony Hanlon Ph.D. has been appointed as CEO for a 12 month period commencing August 31, 2015 
while we continue our search for a new MOH/CEO. 
 
We are pleased to announce the hiring of a permanent Director of Clinical Services, Sherri Cleaves. 
 
Elliot Lake update – Floor plans are finalized and the Architect is preparing construction tender 
documents.  
 
We met with MPP the Honourable David Orazietti and then Mayor Provenzano on August 31, 2015 to 
update APH. A meeting is scheduled for September 25 with MPP Michael Mantha in Elliot Lake. 
 
T. Hanlon had an introductory meeting with Ron Gagnon, CEO, SAH and received a tour of the hospital. 
We plan to work together on areas where there is mutual interest and opportunities for cost savings, for 
example, professional development.  
 
The Attestation document has been submitted to MOHLTC and the Ministry has accepted the 
document. The Executive Team will continue to monitor our compliance standards and address areas 
where improvement is needed. 
  

SUMMARY/INTRODUCTION 

Page 39 of 138



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
September 2015 
Page 4 of 8 
 

 
 

4 

PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS 
 
CHRONIC DISEASE PREVENTION 
 
Topic: Five in Five Smoking Cessation Campaign 
 
This report addresses the following requirements of the Ontario Public Health Standards (2014) 
or Program Guidelines/ Deliverables:  

 Comprehensive Tobacco Control - requirement 1 

 Cessation - Requirement 3, 9, 10 and 12   
 
This report addresses the following Strategic Directions:  

 Collaborate Effectively  

 Improve health Equity 
 
Algoma Public Health is planning a call to action to develop an innovative, integrative, 
collaborative and comprehensive strategy to get Algoma smokers to quit. Algoma Public Health 
and the Province of Ontario are committed to reducing the prevalence of smoking by five 
percentage points over five years. This ambitious direction will require an “all hands on deck” 
approach that includes community leaders, employers, healthcare providers and citizens in 
order to have success.  
 
The 2015 Algoma Cancer Report ranks the lung cancer rates and smoking rates as significantly 
higher in Algoma than Ontario.  About 23.6% of Algoma residents are current cigarette smokers 
and there has been no measurable decline since 2005. Although continued efforts to prevent 
youth from starting to smoke remains vital, the proposed 5% reduction in smoking rates over 
five years can only be achieved by significantly increasing the successful quit attempts among 
people who currently smoke. Rough estimates suggest that 100,000 cumulative quit attempts 
by the approximately 22,000 smokers in Algoma are needed to achieve a five percentage point 
reduction in prevalence over a five year period.  
 
The Ontario Tobacco Research Unit is providing consultation support to Algoma Public Health in 
assessing the cessation plan and is leading an Algoma Partnership in submitting a proposal to 
the Ministry of Health for funding. With such a bold, multiyear, district-wide cessation strategy 
additional fiscal support will be valuable to the success of this call to action. 
 
Algoma has the potential to become Ontario’s “cessation innovation accelerator” where new 
ideas emerging from stakeholders and from research evidence are tested to meet this 
challenging goal for Algoma and the Province.  
 
 

Page 40 of 138



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
September 2015 
Page 5 of 8 
 

 
 

5 

This strategy requires:   
1. Commitment from district community partners to engage in and to seek out 

innovative and new ideas for the strategy;  
2. Using a combined population approach with a special focus on priority groups with 

higher smoking rates, all smokers will have feasible access to current best practices 
in cessation counseling, Nicotine Replacement Therapy and appropriate prescription 
medication in varied settings.   

3. A fully integrated cessation system, including EMRs, data collection, monitoring, and 
developmental evaluation with real-time feedback to ensure innovations are 
sustainable throughout the community will be developed.  

4. An advanced and detailed ongoing outcome monitoring system.  
5. A significant (paid and earned) branded communication strategy will be developed.  

 
The SFO Coordinator and a team of APH staff will be leading this initiative. The 5 in 5 strategy 
will be announced to the community during the Tobacco Awareness Week in January 2016.  

 
 
CHRONIC DISEASE PREVENTION 
 

Topic: Ontario Healthy Kids Community Challenge  
 
This report addresses the following requirements of the Ontario Public Health Standards (2014) 
or Program Guidelines/ Deliverables:  

 Chronic Disease Prevention – Requirement 6, 7, and 11 

 Child Health – Requirement 4, 5, and 7 
 
This report addresses the following Strategic Directions:  

 Collaborate Effectively 

 Health Equity 
 
Ontario’s Healthy Kids Community Challenge – “The Challenge” 
 
Childhood obesity is now a crisis in Canada and Ontario. About 30% of our children and youth 
are now an unhealthy weight. Children and youth who are overweight or obese are more likely 
to grow up to be overweight or obese adults and struggle with their weight throughout their 
lives. They are also at present and future risk of adverse health consequences including, heart 
disease, type 2 diabetes, and many cancers (No Time to Wait: The Healthy Kids Strategy).  
 
The Healthy Kids Community Challenge is a community-led program where partners from 
different sectors (i.e. municipal, public health, education, recreation, and local businesses) work 
together to implement activities to promote healthy weights for kids. Under the leadership of 

Page 41 of 138



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
September 2015 
Page 6 of 8 
 

 
 

6 

municipalities, the selected communities receive funding and supports from the Ministry of 
Health and Long Term Care (MOHLTC) and will be asked to implement local activities related to 
healthy eating and physical activity. The Challenge is based on the Ensemble Prevenons 
l’Obesite des Enfants – Together Let’s Prevent Childhood Obesity (EPODE) methodology. EPODE 
is recognized by the World Health Organization as a best practice in implementing effective and 
sustainable strategies to prevent childhood obesity.  
 
Algoma Public Health is a community partner and helped with the completion of 2 municipal 
applications, one for the municipality of Sault Ste. Marie and the other for Thessalon and 
surrounding municipalities. Both of these applications were successful.  
 
The goal and objectives of the project include developing and implementing programs, policies 
and supports though community-led planning and action that to contribute to the achievement 
of: reducing the prevalence of childhood overweight and obesity, creating supportive 
environments to enable healthy behaviours in children, increasing community capacity and 
improving community collaboration related to planning and promoting healthy weights. These 
goals and objectives align very nicely with the mandate of public health and as such, Algoma 
Public Health will continue to be an involved community partner throughout the activities of 
The Challenge. 
 
 
The Project in the City of Sault Ste. Marie  
 
The City of Sault Ste. Marie and Algoma Public Health will have a unique partnership 
throughout this project. The City of Sault Ste. Marie will be completing a transfer payment 
agreement with Algoma Public Health for employing and housing the project manager and 
implementing The Challenge. Algoma Public Health will be working very closely with the City of 
Sault Ste. Marie as well as many other community partners throughout this project. Initial 
activities will include: conducting a comprehensive needs assessment to identify gaps and 
opportunities, engaging local champions to raise awareness, developing action plans, 
establishing multi-sectorial partnerships, and participating in the evaluation process of The 
Challenge.  
 
The project manager position has recently been advertised and we are hopeful to have a 
successful candidate in this position soon. This will begin the process of launching of The 
Challenge.   
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 42 of 138



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
September 2015 
Page 7 of 8 
 

 
 

7 

 

VACCINE PREVENTABLE DISEASE 
 

Topic: Vaccine Fridge Replacement 
 
This report addresses the following requirements of the Ontario Public Health Standards (2014) 
or Program Guidelines/ Deliverables: Vaccine Preventable Diseases Program Standard 
Requirement #11: The board of health shall promote vaccine inventory management in all 
premises where provincially funded vaccines are stored in accordance with the Vaccine Storage 
and Handling Protocol” 
 
This report addresses the following Strategic Directions: Be Accountable 
 

Risk APH owns several vaccine fridges that store publicly funded vaccine for APH 
use and distribution to health care providers.  The typical lifespan of a 
vaccine fridge is approximately 10 years.  APH owns two vaccine fridges that 
are 15 and 16 years old, respectively.  These older fridges are at an increased 
risk of failure, thus potentially putting publicly funded vaccine at risk. 

Recommendations APH should purchase two new vaccine fridges to replace these older fridges. 
One for the Sault Ste. Marie office and the other for Blind River office. 

Key Points  Vaccine fridges are expensive to purchase 

 One Time Funding Requests can be made to the ministry for the 
purchase of new vaccine fridges 

 One of the aging fridges is housed in the Blind River office, and is the only 
fridge in the office, so it is essential that it be reliable. 

Analysis Although new vaccine fridges are expensive, the risk of a vaccine fridge 
failure in an aging fridge is high, which puts tens of thousands of dollars of 
publicly funded vaccine at risk.  The One Time Funding Request is available 
to offset the cost of the purchase.  In the past, these requests have been 
approved. 

Action A One Time Funding Request is being submitted to the ministry to request 
funding to purchase two new vaccine fridges to replace our aging fridges. 

Financial 
Implications 

None, if One-time Funding Request is approved by the ministry.   

Staffing 
Implications 

None. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Page 43 of 138



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
September 2015 
Page 8 of 8 
 

 
 

8 

 

 
Group Health Centre 

As flu season approaches, APH is again partnering with Group Health Centre to continue 
delivering flu clinics at our main SSM office.  Group Health Centre nurses will be working 
alongside APH nurses to deliver this service.   

 
 

NEXT STEPS 

 
 
T. Hanlon will be visiting each district office to meet with staff over the next couple of weeks and will be 
reaching out across the district to meet with many mayors and reeves for the municipalities. 
 
T. Hanlon will be seeking input from Directors on an individual basis to assess from their point of view 
current strengths and areas of improvement regarding the organization structure as it relates to 
program & service delivery, achieving strategic directions and compliance with MOHLTC standards. After 
this information is collected and analyzed and if it appears changes are advisable he will work with the 
Executive Team and Dr. Sutcliffe on consultation processes with staff through the fall before decisions 
are made on implementation of any changes. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Tony Hanon, Ph.D., CEO and Dr. Penny Sutcliffe, Acting MOH 
 

PARTNERSHIPS 

Page 44 of 138



Page 45 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
7b) Attachment



Page 46 of 138



Page 47 of 138



Page 48 of 138



Page 49 of 138



Page 50 of 138



Page 51 of 138



Page 52 of 138



Page 53 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
7b) Attachment

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text



Page 54 of 138



Page 55 of 138



Page 56 of 138



Page 57 of 138



Board of Health:

Currently meeting 

all board of health 

requirements 

(yes/no/N/A)

If no, indicate date by 

which you will be in 

compliance with the 

requirements 

(DD/MM/YY)

Provide evidence 

where applicable (e.g. 

# of members; date 

of last update; name 

of policy)

1

yes See policy 02-05-000

no Working with MOHLTC

yes See policy 02-05-000

N/A No PH agreements 

yes See policy 02-05-015

yes See by-law 95-2

yes See by-law 95-1

yes See policy 02-05-000

2

yes See policy 02-05-025

yes See attached document

yes See by-law 95-2

yes Documents attached

yes Documents attached

no

Currently recruiting for a full-time 

MOH/CEO. Acting MOH is available 

24/7. Also CEO,1.0 FTE, currently 

on staff

yes Documents attached

yes See by-law 95-1

yes See by-law 95-1

yes Policies attached

3

yes

yes Strategic Plan

4

yes See attached document

yes See attached document

yes See attached document

5

yes Annual Report

Strategic Plan

Cancer Report

yes See attached document

yes See attached document

yes Annual Report

yes See attached document

6

yes  
Program plans can be 

provided 

yes See attached document

yes See attached document

yes See attached document

yes See attached document

yes See attached document

yes See attached document

yes See policy 02-04-030

yes See bylaw 2015-1

N/A N/A

no 15/06/2016
Within program plans.        

See Strategy attached.

yes See attached policies

yes See attached document

no 15/06/2015 See attached document

no 15/06/2015
See attached document. Student 

placements supported.

yes See attached document

APPROVED BY CHAIR OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH:

NAME: Lee Mason

DATE: 21/08/2015

SIGNATURE:

ONTARIO PUBLIC HEALTH ORGANIZATIONAL STANDARDS COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST

Use the drop-down list to indicate your board of health's current compliance with each requirement of the Ontario Public Health Organizational Standards 

(OPHOS).  Where "no" is selected, you must indicate a date by which you will be in compliance with the requirements.  If a requirement does not apply to your 

board structure indicate N/A.  Wherever applicable, please provide evidence to support your statement of compliance.  Please note, evidence should be 25 

charcters in length or less. Please submit the completed and approved checklist to PHUIndicators@ontario.ca by Friday, August 21, 2015.  Additional 

documentation may be submitted as separate documents.

Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit

INSTRUCTIONS

Organizational Standards Sections and Requirements

Board Structure

Board Operations

2.1 Remuneration of board of health members

2.2 Informing municpalities of financial obligations

1.3 Right to make provincial appointments

1.7

1.8

1.1 Definition of a board of health

Municipal membership

1.4 Board of health may provide public health services on reserve

1.2 Number of members on a board of health

4.2 Board of health member orientation and training

Election of the board of health chair

1.6 Corporations without share capital

1.5 Employees may not be board of health members

Quorum

2.4 Content of by-laws

2.5 Minutes, by-laws and policies and procedures

6.5

6.1 Operational plan

6.2

3.1 Board of health stewardship responsibilities

3.2 Strategic plan

Client service standards

5.4 Public reporting

6.16 Professional practice support

Risk management

6.4 Eligibility for appointment as a medical officer of health

6.8 Procurement

6.12 Information management

6.13 Research ethics

6.6 Financial records

6.15 Staff development

5.2 Stakeholder engagement

5.3 Contribute to policy development

Management Operations

6.14 Human resources strategy

Educational requirements for public health professionals

6.7 Financial policies and procedures

6.11 Communications strategy

6.9 Capital funding plan

6.10 Service level agreements

6.3 Medical officer of health provides direction to staff

5.5

Community engagement

2.8 Dismissal of a medical officer of health

2.3

Leadership

Trusteeship

Community Engagement and Responsiveness

4.1 Transparency and accountability

4.3 Board of health self-evaluation

2.9 Reporting relationship of the medical officer of health to the board of health

2.10 Board of health policies

2.6
Appointment of a full-time medical officer of health (i.e., minimum 35 to 40 

hours per week or 0.8 FTE) 

2.7 Appointment of an acting medical officer of health

5.1

8a) Ontario Public Health Organizational Standards Compliance Checklist_Attestation.xlsx

Page 58 of 138

http://issuu.com/algomapublichealth/docs/stratplanbookfinal
http://issuu.com/algomapublichealth/docs/annualreport2014__no_spreads_low_qu
http://issuu.com/algomapublichealth/docs/stratplanbookfinal
http://www.algomapublichealth.com/UserFiles/file/Media/Cancer/2983.pdf
http://issuu.com/algomapublichealth/docs/annualreport2014__no_spreads_low_qu
christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
8a) Attachment



Year: 2015

1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1

2
1 1 1 1 1 1 1

3
1 1 1 1 1 1 1

4
1 1 1 1 1 1 1

5
1 1 1 1 1 1 1

6
1 1 1 1 1 1 1

7
1 1 1 1 1 1 1

8
1 1 1 1 1 1 1

9
1 1 1 1 1 1 1

As a BoH member, I am aware and represent community 

perspective during Board meetings

As a BoH member, I provide input into policy development 

and decision-making

As a BoH member, I represent the interests of the 

organization at all times

As a BoH member, I am satisfied with my attendane at 

meetings

As a BoH member, I am satisfied with my preparation for 

meetings

As a BoH member, I am satisfied with my participation in 

meetings

As a BoH member, I understand my roles and 

responsiblities

As a BoH member, I understand current public health issues

As a BoH member, I have input into the vision, mission, and 

strategic direction of the organization

Board of Health Member Self-Evaluation of Performance

January - June

Part1: Individual Performance

Compliance with individual Roles and Responsibilities as a Board 

of Health Member Stongly Agree Agree Disagree Stongly Disagree Not Applicable

Page 59 of 138



Year: 2015

Board of Health Member Self-Evaluation of Performance

January - June

Part1: Individual Performance

Compliance with individual Roles and Responsibilities as a Board 

of Health Member Stongly Agree Agree Disagree Stongly Disagree Not Applicable
1

1 1 1 1 1 1 1

2

1 1 1 1 1 1 1

3

1 1 1 1 1 1

4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

8 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

The BoH sets bylaws and governance policies

The BoH remains informed with issues pertaining to 

organizational effectiveness through performance 

monitoring and strategic planning

The BoH is compliant with all applicable legislation and 

regulations

The BoH ensures members are aware of their roles and 

responsibilities through orientaion of new members

The BoH is appropriately informed about financial 

management, procurement policies and practice, risk 

management and human resources issues

The BoH holds meetings fequently enough to ensure timely 

decision-making

The BoH bases decision making on access to appropriate 

information with sufficient time for deliberations

The BoH is kept apprised of public health issues in a timely 

and effective manner.

Part 2: Board of Health Processes

Effectiveness of policy and process Stongly Agree Agree Disagree Stongly Disagree Not Applicable

Page 60 of 138



Year: 2015

Board of Health Member Self-Evaluation of Performance

January - June

Part1: Individual Performance

Compliance with individual Roles and Responsibilities as a Board 

of Health Member Stongly Agree Agree Disagree Stongly Disagree Not Applicable
1

1 1 1 1 1 1 1

2
1 1 1 1 1 1

3
1 1 1 1 1 1 1

4
1 1 1 1 1 1 1

5
1 1 1 1 1 1 1

The BoH contibutes to high governance and leadership 

performance

The BoH oversees the development of the strategic plan

The BoH ensures planning processes consider stakeholder 

and community needs

The BoH ensures a climate of mutal trust and respect 

between themselves and the MOH/CEO

The BoH as governing body is achieving its strategic 

outcomes

Part 3: Overall Performance of the Board of Health Stongly Agree Agree Disagree Stongly Disagree Not Applicable

Page 61 of 138



Page 62 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
8b) Attachment



Page 63 of 138



Page 64 of 138



Page 65 of 138



Algoma Public Health – GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE – Policies and Procedures Manual 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-010 

    

DATE: O: February 12, 1996 SECTION: Board 

 Reviewed: March 21, 2012   

 Revised: June 17, 2014   

 Revised: September 22, 2015   

    

PAGE: 1 of 1 SUBJECT: Board Minutes/Packages – 
Posting/Circulation/Retention 

    

POLICY: 

Algoma Public Health Board meeting packages will be posted to the APH website. Minutes will be marked as 
draft. Once the minutes have been approved by the Algoma Public Health Board, the draft minutes will be 
replaced with the approved minutes on the website. Access, storage and retrieval of this information will be in 
accordance with general standards of APH and the Municipal Act. 

PROCEDURES:  

Secretary to the Board of Health: 1) Will post the Board package to the Algoma Public Health 
Website and the email the link to municipalities one week prior to 
the Board meeting. In-committee documentation will not be 
included.(See Policy 02-05-060) 

 2) Maintain a binder of original signed approved Board minutes plus 
signed resolutions by the Board Chair for each Board meeting on 
a yearly basis. 

 

Page 66 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
8c) Attachment



Algoma Public Health – GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE – Policies and Procedures Manual 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-070 

    

DATE: O: September 22, 2015 SECTION: Board 

 R:   

    

PAGE: 1 of 1 SUBJECT: “In Committee” material – 
Posting/Circulation/Retention 

    

POLICY: 

Algoma Public Health Board “In Committee” documentation will be posted to the APH Secure Board website 
along with the Board Meeting Package to allow Board Members time to become familiarized with information 
prior to meetings.   Minutes will be marked as Confidential.  Access, storage and retrieval of this information 
will be in accordance with general standards of APH and the Municipal Act section 239.2 and Section 239.3. 
 

PROCEDURES:  

Board: 1) Has access to “In Committee” documentation through the APH 
Secure Board Webpage when the Board Meeting package is 
posted. 

2) The “In Committee” documentation will be posted as a separate 
hyperlink after the Board Meeting package hyperlink.  

3) “In Committee” documentation will be available to the Board 
Members until the close of the meeting, and then will be removed 
from the Secure Board Webpage. 

4) Board members may review the “In Committee” documentation 
online, but should not make copies, save to desktop, photograph, 
or download in any format any version of the documentation to 
save. 

5) Minutes of “In Committee” sessions will be passed while in the 
next “In Committee” session 

6) Paper copies of the “In Committee” documentation (with the 
confidential watermark) will be made available for the Board 
members during the meeting and collected after the session is 
over.   

Secretary to the Board of Health: 7) Maintain a binder of agenda and minutes of the “In Committee” 
sessions including motion to enter, people present during “In 
Committee” session, directives given to Staff, reports referenced 
and motion to exit. 

 8) Allow onsite access to Board of Health members to review the 
“In Committee” binder as required with reasonable notice.   

 

 

Page 67 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
8d) Attachment



 

Algoma Public Health - GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE – Policies and Procedures Manual 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health BY-LAW #: 95-1 

    

DATE: O:  December 13, 1995 SECTION: Board 

 R:  September 22, 2015   

    

PAGE: 1 of 98 SUBJECT: To Regulate the Proceedings 
of the Board of Health 

    

 

The Board enacts as follows: 
 

Interpretation 
 

1.  In this By-law:  
 
a)  “Act” means the Health Protection and Promotion Act. S.D. Ontario 1983, Chapter 10 

as amended; 
 

b) “Board” means THE BOARD OF HEALTH FOR THE DISTRICT OF ALGOMA HEALTH 
UNIT, as prescribed; 

 
c) “Chair” means the person presiding at the meeting of the Board; 

 
d) “Chair of the Board” means the Chair elected under Section 56 of the Act which reads: 
 

i) A Board of Health shall hold its first meeting of each year not later than the 1st 
day of February 

ii) At the first meeting of the Board of Health in each year, the members of the 
Board shall elect one of the members to be Chairman and one to be Vice-
chairman of the Board for the year; 

 
e) “Committee” means a committee of the Board, but does not include the Committee of 

the Whole; 
 

f) “Committee of the Whole”  means all the members present at a meeting of the Board 
sitting in Committee; 

 
g) “Meeting means a meeting of the Board;  
 
h) “Member” means a member of the Board; 
 
i) “Quorum” means a majority of members of the Board; 
 
j) “Secretary” means the Secretary of the Board of Health; 
 
k) Words that indicate singular masculine gender only shall include plural and/or feminine 

gender. 

 

Page 68 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
8e) Attachment



PAGE: 2 of 98 BY-LAW #: 95-1 
 

General 
 
2. The Board shall hold the first meeting of each year not later than the first day of February.  At 

the first meeting of the Board in each year, members of the Board shall elect one member to 
be Chair and one to be Vice-chair of the Board for the year. 

 
3. The Board shall consist of the members as prescribed under the Act; 

 
a) Where a vacancy occurs in the Board by death, disqualification, resignation or removal 

of a member, the person or body that appointed the member shall appoint a person 
forthwith to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term of the member. 

 

4. In all the proceedings at or taken by this Board, the following rules and regulations shall be 
observed and shall be the rules and regulations for the order and dispatch of business at the 
Board, and in the Committee (s) thereof.  

 
5. Except as herein provided, Carswell’s Procedures for Meetings and Organizations shall be 

followed for governing the proceedings of the Board and the conduct of its members. 
 
6. A person who is not a member of the Board shall not be allowed permitted to address the 

Board except upon invitation of the Chair subject to written request to the Secretary at least 
two weeks prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 
7. In unusual circumstances persons who have not requested in writing to address the Board 

may address the Board provided two-thirds of the Board are in agreement. 
 
8. No person shall smoke in any meeting. 

 
 

Meetings 
 

9.8. Regular Meetings: 
 
a) The regular meetings shall be held at a date and time as determined by the Board at its 

first regular meeting of the year; 
 

b) The Board may, by resolution, alter the time, day or place of any meeting; 
 
c) It is expected that commitments to regularly scheduled Board meetings be honoured by 

the Board members; 
 
d) Three consecutive absences from regular Board meetings by a member of the Board 

will be reviewed by the Chair of the Board with the member in question; following which, 
notification may be forwarded to the appropriate municipality or council. 

 
10.9. Special Meetings: 

 
a) A special meeting of the Board shall not be called for a time which conflicts with a 

regular meeting previously called of (participating) council(s) or municipality(s). 
 
 

Page 69 of 138



PAGE: 3 of 98 BY-LAW #: 95-1 
 

b) A special meeting may be called by the Chair of the Board of Health. 
 

c) The Secretary shall call a special meeting upon receipt of a petition signed by the 
majority of Board members, for the purpose and at the time mentioned in the petition. 

 
11.10. Notice of Meetings: 

 
a) The Secretary shall give notice of each regular and special meeting of the Board and of 

each committee to the members thereof and to the heads of departments concerned 
with such meeting. 

 
b) The notice shall be accompanied by the agenda and any other matter, so far as is 

known, to be brought before such meeting. 
 

c) The notice for a regular meeting shall be delivered or sent by ordinary mail or courier to 
the residence or place of business of each member so as to be received not later than 
three working days prior to the day of the meeting. 

 
d) The notice for a special meeting may be sent by telephone or by electronic means with 

the Secretary confirming receipt. 
 
e) No errors or omissions in giving such notice for the meeting shall invalidate it or any 

action taken. 
 
f) The notice calling a special meeting of the Board shall state the business to be 

considered at the special meeting and no business other than that stated in the notice 
shall be considered at such meeting except with the unanimous consent of the 
members present and voting. 

 
12.11. Preparation of the Agenda: 
 

a) The Secretary shall have prepared for the use of members at the regular meetings, the 
Agenda as follows: 

 
i. Call to Order 
ii. Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
iii. Adoption of Agenda 
iv. Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting 
v. Business Arising from Minutes 
vi. Delegations/Presentations 
vii. Reports of Committees 
viii. Reports of Officers/Program Managers 
ix. Correspondence/Items for Information 
x. Addendum 
xi. Announcements 
xii. New Business/General Business 
xiii. In-Committee Session 
xiv. Return to Open Meeting 
xv. Adjournment 

 
 

Page 70 of 138



PAGE: 4 of 98 BY-LAW #: 95-1 
 

b) For special meetings, the Agenda shall be prepared when and as the Chair of the Board 
may direct or, in default of such direction, as provided in the last preceding section so 
far as is applicable. 

 
c) The business for each meeting shall be taken up in the order in which it stands upon the 

Agenda, unless otherwise decided by the Board. 
 

13.12. Commencement of Meetings: 
 

a) As soon as there is a quorum after the hour fixed for the meeting, the Chair of the Board 
or Vice-chair of the Board, if the Chair is not present shall take the chair and call the 
members to order. 

 
b) If the Chair or Vice-chair is not present, or their duly appointed representative, but a 

quorum is otherwise achieved, the Secretary shall call the members to order and a 
presiding officer shall be appointed by the Secretary to preside during the meeting or 
until the arrival of the person who ought to preside. 

 
c) If there is no quorum with 15 minutes after the time appointed for the meeting, the 

Secretary shall call the roll and take down the names of the members then present.  If 
an absence of an expected Quorum occurs due to a health emergency or to weather 
conditions and business must be expedited, the Board shall have the privilege of 
designating items of business as essential to be expedited at that meeting.  Under these 
conditions the Board shall have the privilege of conducting the necessary items of 
business but such items shall be confirmed at the next meeting of the Board 

 
 
Rules of Debate and Conduct of Members of the Board 

 
14.13. The Chair shall preside over the conduct of the meeting, including the preservation of good 

order and decorum, ruling on point of order and deciding all questions relating to the orderly 
procedure of the meetings, subject to an appeal by any member to the Board from any ruling 
of the Chair. 

 
15.14. Each deputation will be allowed a maximum of one speaker for a maximum of 10 minutes, 

but a member of the Board may introduce a deputation in addition to the speaker or speakers. 
Normally, a deputation will not be heard on an item unless there is a report from staff on the 
item or upon agreement of two-thirds of the Board present. 

 
a) The Board shall render its decision in each case within five (5) working days after 

deputations have been heard. 
 
16.15. If the Chair desires to leave the chair for the purpose of taking part in the debate or 

otherwise, the Chair shall call on another member, prior to the beginning of the debate, to fill 
his place until he resumes the chair. 

 
17.16. Every member, prior to speaking to any question or motion, shall be acknowledged by the 

Chair. 
 
 
 

Page 71 of 138



PAGE: 5 of 98 BY-LAW #: 95-1 
 

18.17. When two or more members ask to speak, the Chair shall name the member who, in his 
opinion, first asked to speak. 

 
19.18. A member may speak more than once on a question, but after speaking shall be placed at 

the foot of the list of members wishing to speak. 
 

20.19. A motion for introducing new matter shall not be presented without notice unless the Board, 
without debate, dispenses with such notice by a majority vote and no report requiring action of 
the Board shall be introduced to the Board unless a copy has been placed in the hands of the 
members at least one day prior to the meeting, except by a majority vote, taken without 
debate. 

 
21.20. Every motion presented to the Board shall be written. 

 
22.21. Every motion shall be deemed to be in possession of the Board for debate after it is 

presented by the Chair, but may, with permission of the Board, be withdrawn at any time 
before amendment or decision. 

 
23.22. When a matter is under debate, no motion shall be received other than a motion: 

 
a) to adopt, 
b) to amend, 
c) to defer action, 
d) to refer, 
e) to receive, 
f) to adjourn the meeting, or 
g) that the vote be now taken.   
 

24.23.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
25.24. When a motion that the vote be now taken is presented, it shall be put to a vote without 

debate, and, if carried by a majority vote of the members present, the motion and any 
amendments thereto under discussion shall be submitted to a vote forthwith without further 
debate. 

 
26.25. Any member, including the Chair, may propose or second a motion and all members 

including the Chair shall vote on all motions except when disqualified by reasons of interest or 
otherwise; a tie vote shall be considered lost.  When the Chair proposes a motion, he shall 
vacate the chair to the Vice-chair during debate on the motion and reassume the chair 
following the vote. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

a) A motion to refer or defer shall take precedence over any other amendment or 
motion except a motion to adjourn. 

b) A motion to refer shall require direction as to the body to which it is being referred 
and is not debatable. 

c) A motion to defer must include a reason and a time period for the deferral and is not 
debatable. 

 

Page 72 of 138



PAGE: 6 of 98 BY-LAW #: 95-1 
 

Duties of the Secretary for the Board 
 

27.26. It shall be the duty of the Secretary: 
 

a) to attend or cause an assistant to attend all meetings of the Board; 
 

b) to keep or cause to be kept full and accurate minutes of the meetings of all the Board 
meetings, text of By-laws and Resolutions passed by it; and 
 

c) to forward a copy of all resolutions, enactments and orders of the Board to those 
concerned in order to give effect to the same. 
 

d) to give all notices required to be given to the members. 
 
 

Appointment and Organization of Committees 
 
28.27. At the first meeting in any year, the Board shall appoint the members required by the Board 

to standing committees(s) (Finance Committee, Governance Committee). (Property 
Committee) 

 
29.28. The Board may appoint committees from time to time to consider such matters as specified 

by the Board. 
 
 

Conduct of Business in Committees 
 
30.29. The rules governing the procedure of the Board shall be observed in the Committees 

insofar as applicable. 
 
31.30. It shall be the duty of the Committee: 

 
a) to report to the Board on all matters referred to them and to recommend such action as 

they deem necessary; 
 

b) to report to the Board the number of meetings called during a year, at which a quorum 
was present, and the number of meetings attended by each member of the Committee; 
and 
 

c) to forward to the incoming Committee for the following year any matter undisposed of. 
 
 

Procedures of the Board Covered by other By-laws 
 

32.31. The procedures of the Board with respect to: 
 

a) incurring of liabilities and paying of accounts; 
b) authority for expenditures; 
c) audits; 
d) budgets and settlements; 

 

Page 73 of 138



PAGE: 7 of 98 BY-LAW #: 95-1 
 

Shall be in accordance with the By-laws #95-2 and #95-3. 
Corporate Seal 

 
33.32. The corporate seal of the Board shall be in the form impressed hereon and shall be kept by 

the Chief Executive Officer or the Business Administrator. 
 

 
Short Name 

 
34.33. The Board will use the short name Algoma Public Health for signage, communications and 

promotional messaging and other matters as warranted. 
 
 

Execution of Documents 
 

35.34. The Board may at any time and from time to time, direct the manner in which and the 
person or persons who may sign on behalf of the Board and affix the corporate seal to any 
particular contract, arrangement, conveyance, mortgage, obligation, or other document or any 
class of contracts, arrangements, conveyances, mortgages, obligations or documents. 

 
36.35. In general, unless changed by a resolution of the Board under clause 34 of this By-law, the 

following applies:  
 

a) Budgets and Settlement Forms will be signed by the combination of Board member(s) 
and staff of the agency as required by Ministry specifications;  

 
b) Leases for real estate will be signed by the Chair of the Board and by the Medical 

Officer of Health or Chief Executive Officer; 
 
c) Leases or purchase agreements for vehicles, as approved in budgets, will be signed by 

the Director/Business Administrator Chief Financial Officer and/or the Medical Officer of 
Health or Chief Executive Officer (should two signatures be necessary); 

 
d) Purchase of service agreements with service providers for programs will be signed by 

the Medical Officer of Health and by the appropriate program Administrator or Director. 
 
d)e) Purchase of service agreements with service providers for financial, building and 

corporate services will be signed by the Medical Officer of Health or Chief Executive 
Officer and by the appropriate administrative manager or Director/Chief Financial 
Officer. 

 
 
Duties of Officers 

 
37.36. The Chair of the Board shall: 
 

a) preside at all meetings of the Board; 
 
b) represent the Board at public or official functions or designate another Board member to 

do so; 
 

Page 74 of 138



PAGE: 8 of 98 BY-LAW #: 95-1 
 

c) be ex-officio a member of all Committees to which he has not been named a member; 
 
d) complete an annual performance appraisal of the Medical Officer of Health using input 

from the Medical Officer of Health and the members of the Board, with the results of this 
appraisal being shared with the Board members in camera; 

 
e) perform such other duties as may from time to time be determined by the Board.  

 
38.37. The Vice-chair shall have all the powers and perform all the duties of the Chair of the Board 

in the absence or disability of the Chair of the Board, together with such powers and duties, if 
any, as may be from time to time assigned by the Board. 

 
 
Amendments 

 
39.38. Any provision contained herein may be repealed, amended or varied, and additions may be 

made to this By-law by a majority vote of members present at the meeting at which such 
motion is considered to give effect to any recommendation contained in a Report to the Board 
and such report has been transmitted to members of the Board prior to the meeting at which 
the report is to be considered.  No motion for that purpose may be considered, unless notice 
thereof has been received by the Secretary two weeks before a Board meeting and such 
notice may not be waived and in any event no bill to amend this By-law shall be introduced at 
the same meeting as that at which such report or motion is considered. 

 
 

Dismissal of Medical Officer(s) of Health 
 

40.39. A decision by the Board of Health to dismiss a Medical Officer of Health from office is not 
effective unless: 

 
a) the decision is carried by the vote of two-thirds of the members of the Board; and 
 
b) the Minister consents in writing to the dismissal. 

 
41.40. The Board of Health shall not vote on the dismissal of a Medical Officer of Health unless 

the Board has given to the Medical Officer of Health: 
 

a) reasonable written notice of the time, place and purpose of the meeting at which the 
dismissal is to be considered; 

 
b) a written statement of the reason for the proposal to dismiss the Medical Officer of 

Health; and 
 
c) an opportunity to attend and to make representation to the Board at the meeting. 

 
Reporting of Medical Officer of Health to the Board of health 
 

1. The medical officer of health of a board of health reports directly to the board of health on 
issues relating to public health concerns and to public health programs and services under 
this or any other Act. The medical officer of health of a board of health is responsible to the 
board for the management of the public health programs and services under this or any 

Page 75 of 138



PAGE: 9 of 98 BY-LAW #: 95-1 
 

other Act. (HPPA, s.67(1) and (3)) 
 

2. The medical officer of health of a board of health is entitled to nitice of and to attend each 
meeting of the board and every committee of the board, but the board may require the medical 
offier of health to withdraw from any part of a meeting at which the board of a committee of the 
board intends to consider a matter related to the remuneration or the performance of the duties 
of the medical officer of health. (HPPA, s70) 

 
 
Enacted and passed by the Algoma Health Unit Board this 13th day of December, 1995. 
 
         Original signed by 

I. Lawson, Chair 
G. Caputo, Vice-chair 
 

Revised and passed by the Algoma Health Unit Board this 18th day of November 1998 
Revised and passed by the Algoma Public Health Board February 2011 
Revised and passed by the Algoma Public Health Board on this 16th day of September 2015 
 

Page 76 of 138



 

Algoma Public Health – GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE – Policies and Procedures Manual 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-060 

    

DATE: O:  September 22, 2015 SECTION: Board of Health 

 R:     

    

PAGE: 1 of 2 SUBJECT: Freedom of Information 

    

POLICY: 
 
Board of Health meetings are open to the public. 
 
In accordance with Section 239 of the Municipal Act, which also applies to local boards or committees of 
local boards, a meeting or part of a meeting may be closed to the public if the subject matter being 
considered is: 
 

 the security of the property of the Algoma Public Health (APH); 
 

 personal matters involving one or more identifiable individuals, including employees or 
prospective employees; 
 

 proposed or pending acquisition, rent or disposition of land or realty; 
 

 reports on charges which have been laid for contravention of by-laws or regulations, but 
which have not yet been dealt with in court; 
 

 labour relations or employee negotiations; 
 

 litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals, affecting the 
board; 
 

 advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary for 
that purpose; 
 

 a matter in respect of which a council, board, committee or other body may hold a closed 
meeting under another Act; and 
 

 for the purpose of educating or training the members (reference section 239, Subsection 3.1 
of the Municipal Act.) 
 

A meeting shall be closed to the public if the subject matter relates to the consideration of a request under 
the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act if the council, board, commission or 
other body is the head of an institution for the purposes of that Act. 
(1990, c. 25, s. 239 (3)) 
 

Page 77 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
8f) Attachment



PAGE: 2 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-060 
 

 
 
Before holding a meeting or part of a meeting that is to be closed to the public, a municipality or local board 
or committee of either of them shall state by resolution, 
 

(a) the fact of the holding of the closed meeting and the general nature of the matter to be 
considered at the closed meeting; or 
 

(b) in the case of education or training sessions, the fact of the holding of the closed meeting, the 
general nature of its subject-matter and that it is to be closed under article 239 subsection 3.1 of 
the Municipal Act. 

 
Minutes of Board of Health, Finance Committee and Governance Committee meetings will be posted on 
Algoma Public Health’s Website and emailed to each municipal clerk in Algoma Public Health’s catchment 
area. Unapproved minutes will be marked unapproved and will be replaced with approved minutes when 
approved at the subsequent meeting.  
 
Copies of Board records in the possession or under the control of the Secretary to the Board may also be 
made available to members of the public and shall be processed in accordance with the General 
Administrative Manual (GAM) policy for information requests. Payment of the costs of photocopying shall 
be in accordance with the Algoma Public Health fee schedule. 
 
Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act does not apply to a record of a meeting 
closed under subsection (3.1). 2006, c. 32, Sched. A, s. 103 (3) of the Municipal Act. 
 
In the event that the APH receives a complaint relating to a closed Board of Health meeting the APH will 
utilize the services of the Ombudsman Ontario as the investigator when required in accordance with s.239 
of the Municipal Act. (reference 03-08). 
 
The Secretary to the Board of Health will ensure that members of the media covering Board meetings have 
access to relevant information. 

 
 
 

 

Page 78 of 138



Algoma Public Health – GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE – Policies and Procedures Manual 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-030 

    

DATE: O: June 20, 2007 SECTION: Board 

 Reviewed: March 17,  2010   

 Reviewed: May 16, 2012 
Reviewed; June 17, 2014 

  

    

PAGE: 1 of 1 SUBJECT: Board Member Code of 
Conduct 

    

POLICY: 

Each member of the Board of Health shall comply with the Code of Conduct for the District of Algoma 
Health Unit (operating as Algoma Public Health) to the best of their ability.  

CODE OF CONDUCT: 

As a member of the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit, the following code of conduct 
will be followed to ensure the efficient and effective discharge of duties while a member of the Board. 

Board Members shall: 

1) Adhere to all Board of Health bylaws and policies. 

2) Represent the best interests of public and community health and the respective programs of 
Algoma Public Health.  

3) Comply with conflict of interest guidelines and declare conflicts on agenda matters as appropriate. 

4) Maintain confident, all matters of agency business except where permitted by law to disclose 
information publicly.  

5) Interact with agency staff only through the Medical Officer of Health or the Chair of the Board.  

6) Be prepared for meetings and participate productively.  

7) Recognize that the Board of Health Chair speaks for the Board on public disclosures. 

8) Interact with each other with respect and dignity.  

9) Agree that the Board of Health Chair will mediate any disputes between Board members.  

Page 79 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
8g) Attachment



      Briefing Note 

www.algomapublichealth.com 

 

 

Strategic Directions: Improve Health Equity  Collaborate Effectively  Be Accountable  Enhance Employee Engagement 

 

To: The Board of Health of Algoma 

 

From: Tony Hanlon, Chief Executive Officer 

 

Date: September 22, 2015 

 

Re:  Healthy Babies Healthy Children Program 
 

 

 For Information  For Discussion  For a Decision 

 

 

 

ISSUE:   
 

Algoma Public Health has not received a budget increase in the Healthy Babies Healthy Children 

(HBHC) Program since 2008. It is becoming more difficult to maintain the services required by 

the HBHC program. All mothers at risk are to be called within 48 hours of discharge from 

hospital. This program also includes coverage on weekends and holidays; however, without an 

increase in the budget the weekend services in the HBHC program may have to be removed to 

maintain the current budget.  

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

That the Algoma District Board of Health supports a letter to the Minister of Children and Youth 

Services to advocate to fully fund all program costs related to the HBHC Program. 

 

 

BACKGROUND:  
 

The Healthy Babies Healthy Children (HBHC) program is a 100% funded Ministry of Child and 

Youth Services (MCYS) program provided by all 36 Ontario Boards of Health. Established in 

1998, HBHC goals are to promote optimal physical, cognitive, communicative and psychosocial 

development in children through effective prevention and early intervention services for families 

as well as to act as a catalyst for coordinated, effective, integrated system of services and 

supports for healthy child development and family well-being though partnership and 

collaboration with a network of services providers. MCYS HBHC funding has been the subject 

of longstanding concern for many boards of health. HBHC has received no funding increase 

since 2008, which would reduce the programs ability to meet MCYS expectation for service. 

 

 

 

Page 80 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
8h) Attachment



Briefing Note  Page 2 of 3 
 

Key components of HBHC include:  

 

1. Screening of all families with children (prenatal to age 6) for any risks to healthy child 

development. 

2. Assessment of families with children (prenatal to age 6) for level of risk to healthy child 

development. 

3. Postpartum support services, including a phone call to all consenting families with 

newborns, the offer of a home visit, counseling, support, and information about 

community services on parenting and healthy child development. 

4. Referrals and/or Recommendations to other services for families with children 

(prenatal to age 6) at risk of problems with healthy child development. 

5. A blended model of home visiting service for families with children (prenatal to age 6) at 

high risk of problems with healthy child development, that includes visits from peer or 

lay home visitors as well as from public health nurses. 

6. Service planning and co-ordination for families with children (prenatal to age 6) at 

high risk of problems with healthy child development. 

 

In 2012, the HBHC protocol was enhanced resulting in several changes to programming 

including: a new HBHC screening tool, expansion of the HBHC database and increased targets. 

In 2013 there was the addition of 1.0 FTE Public Health Nurse (PHN) to achieve the new 

requirements associated with the HBHC Screen and liaison role, but due to the tasks associated 

with this PHN within the new protocol, there was no relief for the service delivery pressures 

within the program.   

 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISKS AND MITIGATION: 

 
To this date we have delivered all expected services but have not been able to meet all projected 

targets with the ministry. The ministry has stated the targets are only benchmarks but in 2015 we 

were required to submit a Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) form stating our plans for 

meeting the service targets. The proposed CQI plan supports increasing the targets which in turn 

increases workload without any increase in funding.    

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 

Without an increase in the budget for HBHC the weekend services may have to be removed.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81 of 138



Briefing Note  Page 3 of 3 
 

OPHS STANDARD: 

 
Family Health Program Standards 

 

Reproductive and Child Health: Disease Prevention 

 

The board of health shall provide all the components of the HBHC Protocol (2008) (or as current 

(Ministry of Child and Youth Services) 

 

The 2012 HBHC Protocol has certain requirements under the Ontario Public Health Standards 

(OPHS) for the boards of health including: 

 

1. Help ensure all the components of the HBHC program are implemented based on the 

OPHS HBHC Protocol and within their allocated resources. 

2. Comply with the financial, administrative and program requirements of the service 

contract with the provincial government. 

3. Manage the funds provided by the provincial government. 

4. Hire, train and supervise Public Health Nurse and other professionals and lay home 

visitors who deliver the components of the HBHC program. 

5. Co-ordinate with other professionals, agencies, and other organizations to ensure HBHC 

services are provided. 

6. Develop effective working relationships/referral protocols with other professionals, 

agencies, and organizations (in particular hospitals), children’s protection services and 

other partners. 

7. Provide data and information required for regional or provincial monitoring and 

evaluations. 

8. Monitor and analyze HBHC services and identify and resolve issues. 

9. Participate and support a network of early years health and social service providers. 

10. Promote the integration of early years programs and services within the community. 

 

 

STRATEGIC DIRECTION: 
 

The recommendations cited in this briefing note align to the Improve Health Equity, Collaborate 

Effectively, and Be Accountable strategic directions 

 

 

CONTACT:   

 
Leslie Wright Program Manager 

Page 82 of 138



      Briefing Note 

www.algomapublichealth.com 

 

 

Strategic Directions: Improve Health Equity  Collaborate Effectively  Be Accountable  Enhance Employee Engagement 

 

To: Mr. Lee Mason, Chair, of the Algoma Board of Health 

From: T. Hanlon, Chief Executive Officer 

Date: September 22, 2015 

Re:      Basic Income Guarantee - Resolution  

 

 

 For Information  For Discussion  For a Decision 

 

 

 

ISSUE:  
 

Algoma Public Health (APH) recognizes that low income individuals and families face 

significant disparities in health status and overall opportunity, as compared to their higher 

income counterparts.  In Algoma, 14.4% of residents live in low income situations, as 

compared to 13.9 % of Ontarians (2011 National Household Survey, after tax low income 

measure).  Efforts to reduce poverty, such as providing a Basic Income Guarantee (BIG), 

will improve health for all people across the lifespan.  APH believes that an important 

role of public health is to advocate for policy change and thereby supports the growing 

provincial and national movement to institute BIG as a poverty reduction strategy. 

 

The purpose of this briefing note is to provide context and recommendations for the next 

steps to advocate for a basic income guarantee to advance health equity in Algoma. 

 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

1. That the Board of Health for Algoma receives the letter dated August 17, 2015 to 

Minister Eric Hoskins, from a group of 194 clinical and public health physicians 

asking that Ontario be considered for a BIG demonstration project. 

2. That the Board of Health for Algoma endorses the resolution to support the 

recommendations outlined in the letter to Minister Hoskins.  

3. That the Board of Health for Algoma endorses an internal and external 

community awareness campaign around promoting BIG as a poverty reduction 

strategy in Algoma. 

 

 

Page 83 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
8i) Attachment



Briefing Note  Page 2 of 2 
 

BACKGROUND:   

Basic income guarantee (BIG), also known as a guaranteed annual income, is a cash 

transfer from government to citizens not tied to labour market participation (Pasma and 

Mulvale, 2009; Basic Income Canada Network, 2015). It ensures income at a level 

sufficient to meet basic needs and live with dignity, regardless of work status (Basic 

Income Canada Network, 2015). Basic income is premised on the vision of universal 

income security through ensuring that everyone receives a modest, but adequate income 

(Pasma and Mulvale, 2009).  There are a number of models for implementing BIG. 

 

Income inequality continues to increase in Ontario and Canada, while current income 

security programs by provincial and federal governments have not proved sufficient to 

ensure adequate, secure income for all.  Basic income resembles income guarantees 

currently provided in Canada for seniors (Old Age Security) and children (National Tax 

Benefit), which have contributed to health improvements in those age groups. A basic 

income guarantee ensures that everyone has sufficient income to meet basic needs and 

live with dignity, regardless of work status. 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Basic income guarantee is gaining momentum across Canada from various sectors and 

political backgrounds.  The Association for Local Public Health Agencies, among other 

provincial and national organizations, have endorsed BIG as an effective poverty 

reduction strategy. 

 

Sending a letter of support to Minister Hoskins and endorsing a BIG awareness campaign 

in Algoma will assist our public health counterparts in building their case. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

 
The current allocated health equity PHN time will support actions outlined in the Basic 

Income Guarantee resolution. 

 

OPHS STANDARD: 

 
“A key component of the requirements outlined in the Ontario Public Health Standards is 

to identify and work with local priority populations``. (OPHS 2008) 

 

 

STRATEGIC DIRECTION:  

 
The recommendations cited in this briefing note align to the Enhancing Health Equity 

and Collaborate Effectively strategic directions. 

 

 

CONTACT:  

 
Laurie Zeppa, Director of Community Services and Chief nursing Officer 

Page 84 of 138



      Briefing Note 

www.algomapublichealth.com 

 

 

Strategic Directions: Improve Health Equity  Collaborate Effectively  Be Accountable  Enhance Employee Engagement 

 

To:  The Board of Health 

From: Tony Hanon, Ph.D., Chief Executive Officer 

Date: September 22, 2015 

Re: Reducing Smoking Rates by 5% in 5years in the District of Algoma 

 

 

 For Information  For Discussion  For a Decision 

 

 

ISSUE:  
 

Algoma Public Health recognizes that lung cancer rates and smoking prevalence are significantly 

higher in Algoma than in Ontario. The 2011-2012 cycle of the Canadian Community Health 

Survey, identifies current smokers, age 12 or older who have smoked at least 100 cigarettes in 

their lifetime and have smoked in the past 30 days, as 23.6% in Algoma compared to 17.8% for 

Ontario. Smoking prevalence for the district is also higher than our north eastern health unit 

counterparts in North Bay and Sudbury.  There has been no measurable decline in Algoma’s 

smoking rates since 2005.  

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

1. That the Board of Health for Algoma endorses the call to action outlined in the 2015 

Cancer report, to reduce smoking rates across the district of Algoma by 5% over the next 

5years in order to bring them more in line with the provincial average and help to reduce 

health inequities in the prevention of cancer 

2. That the Board of Health endorses a strategy that engages community partners including 

those from health care, education, and the private sector to support the implementation of  

a 5 year smoking reduction plan across the district 

3. That the Board of Health for Algoma endorses the development of an internal and 

external branded communication strategy directed at smokers to make quit smoking 

attempts 

4. That the Board of Health for Algoma endorses a proposal submission in partnership with 

the Ontario Tobacco Research Unit to the Ministry of Health to fund a 5 year smoking 

reduction strategy 

5. That the Board of Health for Algoma endorses a request to municipalities and townships 

across the district of Algoma to pass resolutions that support a call to action and district-

wide strategy to reduce smoking rates by 5% over the next 5years 

 

Page 85 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
8j) Attachment



Briefing Note  Page 2 of 3 
 

BACKGROUND:   
 

 The 2015 Cancer Report released by Algoma Public early in 2015 highlighted the 

necessity for aggressive action to combat the districts high lung cancer rates 

 The report released to the public and key stakeholders emphasized a  “Call to Action” by 

Algoma Public Health to set and work towards a goal to reduce smoking rates by 5% in 5 

years 

 The Ontario Tobacco Research Unit was enlisted to provide consultation support to 

Algoma Public Health in completing a situation assessment and plan  

 Rough estimates suggest that 100,000 cumulative quit attempts by the approximately 

22,000 smokers in Algoma are needed to achieve a five percentage point reduction in 

prevalence over a five year period.  

 Algoma Public Health has reached out to key stake holders from healthcare, education 

and the private sector from across Algoma to join a collaborative partnership that would 

together develop a strategy to reach this ambitious goal 

 The OTRU is leading this Algoma Partnership in submitting a proposal to the Ministry of 

Health for funding. With such a bold, multiyear, district-wide cessation strategy 

additional fiscal support will be valuable to the success of this call to action 

 Although continued efforts to prevent youth from starting to smoke remains vital, the 

proposed 5% reduction in smoking rates over five years can only be achieved by 

significantly increasing the successful quit attempts among people who currently smoke.  

 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISKS AND MITIGATION:  

 
No conceivable risks are identified at this time 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 

 The request for funding proposal being submitted by the Ontario Tobacco 

Research Unit(OTRU) on behalf of a partnership initiative with Algoma Public 

Health is due on September 26, 2015 

 Any monies received from this joint submission for funding from the Ministry to 

support a 5% in 5years smoking reduction strategy will be managed by the 

Ontario Tobacco Research Unit  

 Funds would flow from OTRU to Algoma Public Health to support the initiative 

outlined in the proposal’s work plans. 

 The strategy  would be lead locally by the existing tobacco control coordinator and a 

team of staff including the communication specialist, epidemiologist and those with 

expertise in supporting smoking cessation across communities in Algoma 

 

Page 86 of 138



Briefing Note  Page 3 of 3 
 

OPHS STANDARD: 

 
Ontario Public Health Standards (2014) or Program Guidelines/ Deliverables:  

 Comprehensive Tobacco Control - requirement 1 

 Cessation - Requirement 3, 9, 10 and 12   

 

 

STRATEGIC DIRECTION: 

 
Strategic Directions: Collaborate Effectively, Improve health Equity 

 

 

CONTACT: 

 
Laurie Zeppa, Director of Community Services and Chief Nursing Officer 

 

Page 87 of 138



 

      Briefing Note 

www.algomapublichealth.com 

 

 

 

 

 

To: The Board of Health of Algoma  

From: Tony Hanlon, Chief Executive Officer  

Date: September 22, 2015 

Re: Prenatal & Postnatal Nurse Practitioner Program (PPNP) 

 

 

 For Information  For Discussion  For a Decision 

 

 

 

ISSUE:   
 

In June 2014, Algoma Public Health’s Prenatal and Postnatal Nurse Practitioner (PPNP) 

services were discontinued as the nurse practitioner at the time resigned.  The position 

remains unfilled to this date, due to a lack of applicants and little to no community 

demand. 

  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

 
To discontinue the PPNP program offered at Algoma Public Health in Sault Ste. Marie. 

 

 

BACKGROUND:   

 
The Prenatal and Postnatal Nurse Practitioner (PPNP) program was first established in 

2001 to support the provision of primary health care by a nurse practitioner (NP) through 

public health units in under serviced areas where there were barriers to accessing primary 

care services for pregnant women and parents/caregivers and families with children under 

the age of 6.   

 

In 2003, Algoma Public Health secured program funding through the Ministry of 

Children and Youth Services (MCYS) to implement a local PPNP program in Sault Ste. 

Marie.  

 

Page 88 of 138



Briefing Note  Page 2 of 3 
 

Until June 2014, when the nurse practitioner resigned, APH provided full time NP 

services to pregnant women and those women with children under the age of 6. After the 

NP’s resignation, a recruitment phase was undertaken but no applications were received. 

  

In November 2014, an inquiry was made about the position. At that point, a scan of calls 

received on the Parent Child Information Line (PCIL) and anecdotal information received 

from both the hospital liaison and 48hr home visiting public health nurses indicated that 

there was little to no community demand for primary care from pregnant women and 

women with children under the age of 5. Additionally, contact was made with the Group 

Health Centre who confirmed that there were “many” family practitioners within our 

community accepting newborn patients.   

 

In February and March 2015 conversations with the MCYS and APH representatives, 

including Director of Community Services occurred to discuss the status of Sault Ste. 

Marie’s PPNP program.  Expansion of the program was mentioned however it was not an 

option at that time.  It was agreed upon that we would collaborate with our internal 

epidemiologist to evaluate available client data, consider anecdotal information and 

develop a client survey to best inform the next steps.  

 

In June 2015 a survey using convenience sampling was administered by APH staff 

working in program areas where women who were currently accessing services were 

likely to be pregnant or have children under the age of 5.  Of the 66 respondents, 81% of 

women confirmed having a primary care provider for both themselves and their children, 

4.8% confirmed having a primary care provider for their children but not themselves, and 

14.3% pregnant women reported not having access to a primary care provider. 

 

Reports were generated using our internal electronic health records for clients accessing 

NP services from April 2012 to March 2014. These showed a decrease in client visits, 

new clients, and unique clients, and an increase in prenatal client visits. However, 

prenatal client visits were almost exclusively for the purposed of obtaining a referral to an 

OB/GYN. 

 

On September 10, 2015 APH engaged in a second conversation with MCYS to review 

current data and discuss options to explore expansion of current services.  At this time 

MCYS indicated that they are not in a position to change the policy of this program.   

 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISKS AND MITIGATION: 
 

Some of the potential risks associated with discontinuing the PPNP program: 

 A small percentage of potential clients that fit the PPNP criteria will need to 

access other options for primary health care. 

 Staff reduction will not need to be addressed as APH does not currently have a 

nurse practitioner in this position.  However, this will be a loss of a specific ONA 

position.  

 

 

Page 89 of 138



Briefing Note  Page 3 of 3 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 

No financial implications exist for APH as this is a program that is 100% funded through 

the Ministry of Children and Youth Services. 

 

 

STRATEGIC DIRECTION: 
 

The recommendations cited in this briefing note align to the Improve Health Equity and 

Collaborate Effectively strategic directions. 

 

 

CONTACT: 
 

Laurie Zeppa, Director of Community Services and Chief Nursing Officer 

 

Page 90 of 138



 
 
 
Hon. Kathleen O. Wynne, Premier  
Legislative Bldg Rm 281 
Queen's Park 
Toronto, ON  
M7A 1A1 
 
June 19, 2015 
 
 
Dear Premier Wynne, 
 
RE:  Ontario Grades 1-12 Health and Physical Education Curriculum “Human Development and 

Sexual Health” Content 
 
On behalf of the Board of Health of the Perth District Health Unit, I am writing this letter to congratulate your 
government  for releasing the new Ontario Grades 1-12 Health and Physical Education Curriculum, including 
the updated “Human Development and Sexual Health” content. 
 
The proposed curriculum changes primarily relate to creating awareness and a culture of respect regarding 
diversity, including visible and invisible differences, sexual orientation, and gender identity. Since 1998, there 
have been numerous reports written that support the critical need for education and awareness-raising on 
diversity, and for the elimination of bullying related to visible and invisible differences. Ontario must support the 
development of positive self-concept in all our children and youth.  
 
In relation to the sexual health content of the new curriculum, it focuses on developing skills amongst children 
and youth to navigate the pressures they will be exposed to in our society. The prevention of sexually 
transmitted infections and the promotion of healthy sexuality are priorities for public health, and this curriculum 
utilizes the most current understanding in these areas.  
 
We support the “Human Development and Sexual Health” content as proposed and thank you sincerely for 
your perseverance in addressing challenges. Locally, we have collaborated with our partner school board to 
create a low literacy information sheet to allay the anxieties of our Anabaptist population (enclosed). We will 
also be participating in a community information meeting to respond to questions and concerns. 
 
Respectfully yours, 

 
Dr. Miriam Klassen    Ms. Teresa Baressi 
Medical Officer of Health    Board Chair 
 
MK/mr 
 
c.  Hon. Liz Sandals, Minister of Education 
 Hon. Dr. Eric Hoskins, Minister of Health and Long-Term Care 
 ADM (Acting) Martha Greenberg, Health Promotion Division 
 Parliamentary Assistant, Ministry of Children and Youth Services 
 Mr. Randy Pettapiece, MPP Perth-Wellington 
 Boards of Health of Ontario Public Health Units 

 

Page 91 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
9a) Attachment



 

An Accredited Teaching Health Unit 
Centre agréé d’enseignement en santé 

 
June 30, 2015 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
The Honourable Tracy MacCharles 
Minister of Children and Youth Services 
Ministry of Children and Youth Services 
14th floor, 56 Wellesley StreetWest 
Toronto, ON  M5S 2S3 
 
Dear Minister MacCharles: 
 
Re: Healthy Babies Healthy Children Program 
 
The Healthy Babies Healthy Children (HBHC) program is a 100% funded 
Ministry of Child and Youth Services (MCYS) program provided by all 
36 Ontario Boards of Health. Established in 1998, HBHC supports 
healthy child development by identifying vulnerable families and 
providing or connecting them with appropriate supports.   
 
As with many boards of health across the province, the Sudbury & 
District Board of Health has been increasingly challenged to meet 
Ministry expectations for HBHC service provision within the l00% 
funding envelope. At its meeting on June 18, 2015, the Board of Health 
carried the following resolution #28-15: 
 

WHEREAS the Healthy Babies Healthy Children (HBHC) program is a 
prevention/early intervention initiative designed to ensure that all Ontario 
families with children (prenatal to age six) who are at risk of physical, 
cognitive, communicative, and/or psychosocial problems have access to 
effective, consistent, early intervention services; and 
 
WHEREAS the Healthy Babies Healthy Children program is a mandatory 
program for Boards of Health; and 
 
WHEREAS in 1997 the province committed to funding the Healthy Babies 
Healthy Children program at 100% and the HBHC budget has been flat-
lined since 2008; and  
 
WHEREAS collective agreement settlements, travel costs, pay increments 
and accommodation costs have increased the costs of implementing the 
HBHC  program, the management and administration costs of which are 
already offset by the cost-shared budget for provincially mandated 
programs; and  

 
WHEREAS the HBHC program has made every effort to mitigate the 
outcome of the funding shortfall, this has becoming increasingly more 
challenging and will result in reduced services for high-risk families if 
increased funding is not provided. 

Page 92 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
9b) Attachment



The Honourable Tracy MacCharles 
June 30, 2015 
Page 2 

 

 
 

 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Sudbury & District Board of Health direct staff to 
prepare a budget and program analysis of the HBHC program, outlining pressures and options for 
mitigation, detailing  program and service implications of these options as compared against 
MCYS expectations; and 
 
FURTHER THAT the Sudbury & District Board of Health advocate strongly to the Minister of 
Children and Youth Services to fully fund all program costs related to the Healthy Babies 
Healthy Children program, including all staffing, operating and administrative costs. 
 
FURTHER THAT this motion be forwarded to the Association of Local Public Health 
Agencies, the Chief Medical Officer of Health and all Ontario Boards of Health. 

 
It remains our priority to ensure that the HBHC program can effectively identify and support 
children and families most in need throughout the Sudbury/Manitoulin District.  We look 
forward to further dialogue with MCYS on how we can best achieve this goal together.  
 
Thank you for your attention to this important public health issue. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Penny Sutcliffe, MD, MHSc, FRCPC 
Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
 
cc:  Chief Medical Officer of Health (Acting) 
 Linda Stewart, Executive Director, Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
 Ontario Boards of Health 
 

Page 93 of 138



Page 94 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
9c) Attachment



Page 95 of 138



Page 96 of 138



 

An Accredited Teaching Health Unit 
Centre agréé d’enseignement en santé 

June 30, 2015 
 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
 
The Honourable Eric Hoskins 
Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care 
10th floor, 80 Grosvenor Street 
Toronto, ON  M7A 2C4 
 
Dear Minister Hoskins: 
 
Re: Enforcement of the Immunization of School Pupils’ Act (ISPA) 
 
Enforcement by the Sudbury & District Board of Health of the July 2014 
legislative changes to the ISPA has highlighted significant challenges for local 
public health with respect to duplicate and incomplete immunization records. 
This is in part due to the fact that health care providers are not required to report 
immunizations to the Medical Officer of Health.   
 
At its meeting on June 18, 2015, the Sudbury & District Board of Health carried 
the following resolution #25-15: 
 

WHEREAS each public health unit in Ontario is required to enforce the 
Immunization of School Pupils Act by assessing and maintaining 
immunization records of school pupils (students) each year; and  
  
WHEREAS parents/guardians whose child(ren) receive vaccine at a health 
care provider other than public health are required to provide notification 
of their child’s immunizations to their local public health unit; and  
  
WHEREAS healthcare providers are not required under the provisions of 
the Health Protection and Promotion Act to report immunizations to the 
Medical Officer of Health; and 
  
WHEREAS incomplete immunization records create significant challenges 
to the enforcement of the ISPA indicated by the numbers of students 
suspended from attendance at school under the Act, as well as parental and 
guardian frustration;  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Sudbury & District Board of 
Health recommend to the Minister of Health and Long Term Care that 
amendments to provincial regulations be made requiring health care 
providers to report to the Medical Officer of Health all immunizations 
administered to patients under 18 years of age.  

Page 97 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
9d) Attachment



 

 

Enforcement of the Immunization of School Pupils’ Act (ISPA) 
June 30, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
 

FURTHER THAT the Sudbury & District Board of Health advocate to the Minister of Health and 
Long Term Care for the integration of all health care provider electronic immunization records 
onto a common electronic data base to ensure efficient and accurate sharing of immunization 
records. 
 
FURTHER THAT this motion be forwarded to the Association of Local Public Health Agencies, 
and to Ontario Boards of Health. 

 
The Board of Health for the Sudbury & District Health Unit takes seriously its responsibility to 
promote and protect the health of children. The Board believes that measures to enable the accurate and 
timely reporting of immunizations by all health care providers for all children attending school in 
Ontario will greatly assist in the effectiveness and efficiency of the Board’s responsibility. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Penny Sutcliffe, MD, MHSc, FRCPC 
Medical Officer of Health  
 
cc:   Linda Stewart, Executive Director, Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
 Ontario Boards of Health 
 
 
 

Page 98 of 138



 

An Accredited Teaching Health Unit 
Centre agréé d’enseignement en santé 

 
 
 
 
June 30, 2015 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
 
The Honourable Kathleen Wynne 
Premier of Ontario 
Legislative Building, Queen’s Park 
Toronto, ON M7A 1A1 
Email:  premier@ontario.ca 
 
Dear Premier Wynne:  
 
Re: Northern Ontario Evacuations of First Nations Communities 
 
At its meeting on June 18, 2015, the Sudbury & District Board of Health 
carried the following resolution #32-15: 
 

WHEREAS the evacuation and relocation of residents of a number of 
First Nations communities in Northwestern Ontario and along the James 
Bay Coast, is required on a close to annual basis due to seasonal 
flooding and risk of forest fires; and 
 
WHEREAS a safe, effective, and efficient temporary community 
relocation is challenging within the current reactive model; and 
 
WHEREAS a proactive, planned and adequately resourced evacuation 
system would ensure the maintenance of quality evacuation centers in 
pre-selected host municipalities, as well as appropriate infrastructure to 
ensure the health and safety of evacuees in a culturally acceptable 
manner; and  
 
WHEREAS the Thunder Bay District Board of Health passed a motion 
on March 18, 2015, and has submitted a letter dated April 10, 2015 to 
the Honourable Kathleen Wynne requesting that the provincial 
government address the ongoing lack of resources and infrastructure to 
ensure the safe, efficient and effective temporary relocation of First 
Nations communities in Northwestern Ontario and the James Bay coast 
when they face environmental and weather related threats in the form of 
seasonal flooding and forest fires; 
 

Page 99 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
9e) Attachment



The Honourable Kathleen Wynne 
Re: Northern Ontario Evacuations of First Nations Communities 
Page 2 
 

 

 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Sudbury and District Board of Health 
support the Thunder Bay District Board of Health’s resolution 50-2015 dated March 
18, 2015; and 
 
FURTHER THAT a copy of this motion be forwarded to the Premier of Ontario, 
Ministers responsible for Health and Long-Term Care, Community Safety and 
Correctional Services, Aboriginal Affairs, Northern Development and Mines, Natural 
Resources and Forestry, local area Members of Provincial Parliament and all Ontario 
Boards of Health. 

 
It is the Board’s hope that you will seriously consider the need for a proactive, planned and 
adequately resourced evacuation system which would ensure the safe, efficient and effective 
temporary relocation of First Nation communities in Northwestern Ontario and the James Bay 
coast when these communities are threatened by seasonal flooding and risk of forest fires. 
 
Thank you for your attention to this important public health issue.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Penny Sutcliffe, MD, MHSc, FRCPC 
Medical Officer of Health  
 
 
cc: Hon. Dr. Eric Hoskins, Minister of Health and Long-Term Care  
 Hon. Yasir Naqvi, Minister Community Safety and Correctional Services 
 Hon. David Zimmer, Minister of Aboriginal Affairs 
 Hon. Michael Gravelle, Minister of Northern Development and Mines 
 Hon. Bill Mauro, Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry 
 Hon. Glenn Thibeault, MPP Sudbury 
 Hon. France Gélinas, MPP Nickel Belt 
 Linda Stewart, Executive Director, Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
 
 

Page 100 of 138



Page 101 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
9f) Attachment



Page 102 of 138



Page 103 of 138



Page 104 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
9g) Attachment



Page 105 of 138



 

1. 
 

August 17, 2015 

 

Hon. Dr. Eric Hoskins 

Minister of Health and Long-Term Care 

80 Grosvenor St., 10th Floor, Hepburn Block 

Toronto ON M7A 2C4 

 

Dear Minister Hoskins: 

 

We, the undersigned, are 194 physicians providing clinical and public health services in 

Ontario.  We are seeking your leadership in advancing consideration by the Ontario 

government for introducing a basic income guarantee (BIG) for the people of Ontario.  

More specifically, we ask for you to encourage the Ontario government, in support of the 

Poverty Reduction Strategy and the health of Ontarians, to establish a BIG trial program 

or demonstration project.  We would welcome a meeting with you to discuss a BIG for 

Ontarians and options for advancing this idea, e.g., striking an experts group to study 

basic income in depth and to help design a trial program or demonstration project.  

 

The government’s commitment to poverty reduction positions Ontario to model basic 

income for Canada, and the world, in the 21st century.  We are confident that a BIG trial 

or demonstration would be highly complementary to the government’s current array of 

measures to combat poverty and social exclusion in Ontario.   

 

As physicians we regularly witness what the Canadian Medical Association has attested, 

that “income is the great divide when it comes to Canadians’ health.”1  So profound is the 

income-health nexus that Ontario family physicians are now taught to prescribe income-

based solutions to the health problems of low income patients.2  As well, the University 

of Toronto undergraduate medical program includes seven mandatory hours of teaching 

focused specifically on this issue.  As one of us has written: 

 

The link between health and income is solid and consistent—almost every 

major health condition, including heart disease, cancer, diabetes, and mental 

illness, occurs more often and has worse outcomes among people who live at 

lower income.  As people improve their income, their health improves.  It 

follows that improving my patients’ income should improve their health.3   

 

We appreciate how the government is trying to improve the well-being of lower income 

Ontarians.  Progress has been made but great strides are still needed, as evidenced by a 

child poverty rate of 19.9% for Ontario in 20124, representing 550,000 children.5  

Research has clearly shown that the experience of poverty in early childhood can lead to 

Page 106 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
9h) Attachment



 

2. 
 

what is termed “toxic stress”, with profound implications for physical and mental health 

from childhood through to adulthood.6  This evidence alone suggests the imperative of a 

BIG for Ontario’s children and their families. 

 

More is needed to improve social security for Ontarians.  In this context we note that the 

2014 Mandate Letter given to you by Premier Wynne asks “that you explore long-term 

options for a sustainable program that provides health benefits to lower-income 

Ontarians.”7  In our view, this directive provides an opening for the government to 

explore the idea of establishing a BIG trial program or demonstration project, a move 

which could eventually lead to significant health and social improvements for all 

Ontarians, and especially those living at or vulnerable to low income.  Surely this is one 

of the most upstream and sustainable of health interventions. 

 

As defined by Basic Income Canada Network (BICN), a BIG “ensures everyone an income 

sufficient to meet basic needs and live with dignity, regardless of work status.”  As BICN 

further explains, a BIG for all:  

 

“ensures that everyone can meet their needs, participate in society and live 

with dignity.  It reduces steep income inequalities and contributes to better 

health and fewer societal problems, opening the door to long-term savings in 

health care and other public services.  It enables people to manage transitions 

and setbacks, supports creativity and entrepreneurship, and keeps money 

moving and producing in our economy.”8  

 

As Barry Ward, Chair of the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, wrote in the Unit’s 

recent letter to you et al.9:  

 

Basic income is a concept that has been examined and debated for decades, 

including through pilot projects in the United States, Canada, and other 

countries more recently.10,11 [The Dutch city of Utrecht is currently 

embarking on its own test of basic income.12] As you may be aware, 

Mincome, in particular, was an encouraging pilot project of basic income for 

working age adults conducted jointly by the Government of Manitoba and the 

Government of Canada in the 1970s, which demonstrated several improved 

health and educational outcomes.13  Basic income also resembles income 

guarantees currently provided in Canada for seniors and children, which have 

contributed to health and social improvements in those age groups.14,15 

 

We anticipate that policy makers will continue to place great emphasis on job creation 

and employment readiness as central to combating poverty.  Of course, everything that 

Page 107 of 138



 

3. 
 

can practically be done to create and maintain employment should be pursued.  The 

reality, however, is that labour is undergoing profound change due globalization, 

outsourcing and automation.  This change is giving rise to a swelling “precariat”—those 

whose participation in the labour market is precarious.  Twenty-two percent of jobs in 

Ontario are in this category16 and in Canada’s urban heartland in and around Toronto, 

“[t]his type of employment has increased by nearly 50% in the last 20 years.  Another 

20% are in employment relationships that share at least some of the characteristics of 

precarious employment.”17 

 

As BICN states, a BIG “safeguards the future as automation transforms the way people 

work and live together.”18 And as Barry Ward wrote (in his recent letter to you et al.):  

 

“[i]n addition to providing an effective policy response to poverty and 

inequality, a basic income guarantee would be a key societal support in the 

face of rising precarious employment in Canada.  Given the trend towards 

fewer opportunities for secure, permanent jobs, providing living wages and 

benefits, a basic income guarantee could help buffer the effects of precarious 

employment by providing a form of ‘disaster insurance’ that protects people 

from slipping into poverty during challenging times.”19 

 

We recognize that, optimally, the federal government would be involved in establishing 

a BIG for all in Canada, in cooperation with the provinces and territories.  While we are 

hopeful that a future federal government will demonstrate leadership for a BIG, we 

believe that Ontario could act on its own (as analysis by Toronto-based social policy 

expert John Stapleton suggests20)—at the very least moving forward with a focused, 

well-designed and evaluated trial program or demonstration project.  

 

Indeed, an initial trial or project would help to inform program design considerations in 

the phase of full implementation.  It would help identify how a BIG could best intersect 

with other parts of health and social systems.  It would also help evaluate the cost 

savings in health and elsewhere to make the case for a larger national shift.   

 

The establishment of a BIG for Ontarians would be a magnificent legacy for those with 

the vision to act, and the Ontario government has an opportunity to be the provincial 

groundbreaker and innovator for this policy.  We would be pleased to help you and your 

colleagues in thinking about how to move this forward.  Please advise if a delegation 

from our ranks can meet with you soon to discuss this idea.  Thank you for your 

consideration and we look forward to hearing from you: please direct your response to 

Philip Berger, MD (bergerp@smh.ca) and Lisa Simon, MD (lisa.simon@smdhu.org). 

 

Page 108 of 138



 

4. 
 

Sincerely, 

 

On behalf of the 194 physician signatories listed on the attached pages 

 

 
 
Philip B. Berger MD 
Medical Director, Inner City Health Program, 
St. Michael’s Hospital 
Associate Professor, Faculty of Medicine, 
University of Toronto 
30 Bond Street 
Toronto, ON M5B 1W8 
Phone: 416- 867- 7440 
Fax: 416- 867- 3739 
Email:  bergerp@smh.ca 
 

 

 
  
Lisa Simon, MD  
Associate Medical Officer of Health 
Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit 
15 Sperling Drive 
Barrie, ON L4M 6K9 
Phone: 705-721-7520 ext. 7244 
Email: lisa.simon@smdhu.org 
 
Cc.  Hon. Kathleen Wynne, Premier 

Hon. Deb Matthews, Deputy Premier, President of the Treasury Board, Minister 

Responsible for the Poverty Reduction Strategy  

Page 109 of 138



 

5. 
 

List of Physician Signatories 

 

1. Risa Adams, MD CCFP (Guelph, ON) 

2. Diana R. Ahmed, MD CCFP FCFP (Brantford, ON) 

3. Wajid Ahmed, MBBS MSc MAS FRCPC (Windsor, ON) 

4. Mohanad Shalan Al-Gazi, MBChB FRCPC (Hamilton, ON) 

5. Ian Arra, MD MSc (Sudbury, ON) 

6. Neil Arya, BASc MD CCFP FCFP D Litt (Waterloo, ON) 

7. Tobey Audcent, MD, FRCP(C) (Ottawa, ON) 

8. Jillian Baker, MD FRCP (Toronto, ON) 

9. Jeff Balderson, MD MA CCFP FCFP (Sioux Lookout, ON) 

10. Lucy Barker, MD (Toronto, ON) 

11. Tony Barozzino, MD FRCP (Toronto, ON) 

12. Sarah Basma, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

13. Ahmed Bayoumi, MD MSc FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

14. Imaan Bayoumi, MD MSc FCFP (Napanee, ON) 

15. Linda Beckett, MD CCFP (Kingston, ON) 

16. Michaela Beder, MD FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

17. Justin Bell, MD BHsc (Kingston, ON) 

18. Sue Bennett, MB ChB FRCP DTM&H DRCOG DCH Dip Psych (Ottawa, ON) 

19. Mike Benusic, MD (Toronto, ON) 

20. Philip B. Berger, MD CCFP FCFP FRCPC(Hon), O.ONT (Toronto, ON) 

21. Kate Bingham, MD MSc CCFP (EM) FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

22. Gary Bloch, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

23. Wendell Block, MD CCFP FCFP (Toronto, ON) 

24. Herbert Bonifacio, MD FRCP (Toronto, ON)  

25. Dona Bowers, MD CCFP FCFP (Ottawa, ON) 

26. Lindsay Bowman, BMSc MD (Toronto, ON) 

27. Corey Bricks, MD BMSc CCFP Candidate (Toronto, ON) 

28. Jason Brophy, MD MD MSc DTM FRCPC (Ottawa, ON) 

29. Sandy Buchman, MD CCFP FCFP (Toronto, ON) 

Page 110 of 138



 

6. 
 

30. Gary Burrows, MD FRCP (Toronto, ON) 

31. Samantha Buttemer, BHSc MD (Kingston, ON) 

32. Douglas Campbell, MD FRCP (Toronto, ON) 

33. Jennifer Campbell, MPH MD (Toronto, ON) 

34. Tesha Casella, MD CCFP (Uxbridge, ON) 

35. Ian Casson, MD MSc FCFP (Kingston ON) 

36. Meg Casson, MSc MD (Toronto, ON)  

37. Patricia Cavanagh, MD FRCP(C) (Toronto, ON) 

38. Adrienne K. Chan, MD MPH FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

39. Alison Charlebois, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

40. Sohail Cheema, MD FRCP (Toronto, ON) 

41. Chee Chen, MBBS FRCPC FRCP (Barrie, ON) 

42. Jim Chirico HBSc MD FRCP (C) MPH (North Bay, ON) 

43. Shannon Cohane, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

44. W. David Colby, MSc MD FRCPC (Chatham, ON) 

45. Benjamin Croft, MDCM MSc CCFP (Hamilton, ON) 

46. Anthony O. Daicar, MD FRCSC FACS (Kingston, ON) 

47. Paul Das, MD MSc CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

48. Malini Dave, MD FAAP FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

49. Avram Denburg, MD MSc FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

50. James Deutsch, MD PhD FRCP (C) (Toronto, ON) 

51. Christie Diekmeyer, MD (Ottawa, ON) 

52. Kathryn Dorman, MD MSc CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

53. Naheed Dosani, MD CCFP BSc (Toronto, ON) 

54. Kathleen Doukas, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

55. Sheila Dunn, MD MSc CCFP(EM), FCFP (Toronto, ON) 

56. Alanna Fitzgerald-Husek, MD MPH CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

57. Paul Fluit, MD CCFP (Ottawa, ON) 

58. Conchita Fonseca, MD CCFP (EM) (Ottawa, ON) 

59. Anthony Ford-Jones, MB BS FRCPC (Burlington, ON) 

60. Elizabeth Lee Ford-Jones, MD FRCPC (Toronto ON) 

Page 111 of 138



 

7. 
 

61. Katie Forfar, MD (Beachburg, ON) 

62. Sloane Freeman, MD FRCP (Toronto, ON) 

63. Charles Gardner, MD CCFP MHSc FRCPC (Barrie, ON) 

64. Sharon Gazeley, BSc(OT) MD CCFP FCFP (Toronto, ON) 

65. John Gibson, MD FCFP (Toronto, ON) 

66. Christopher Giles, MD CCFP FCFP (Sioux Lookout, ON) 

67. Alexander Glover, MB BCh BAO, CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

68. Gautam Goel, BSc MD (Toronto, ON) 

69. Ritika Goel, MD MPH CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

70. Richard Gould, MD MHSc FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

71. Samantha Green, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

72. Emily Groot, MD MPH (Kingston, ON) 

73. Doug Gruner, MD CCFP FCFP (Ottawa, ON) 

74. Gordon Guyatt, MD MSc FRCPC OC (Hamilton, ON) 

75. Ra Han, MD FRCP (Toronto, ON) 

76. Monica Hau, MD MSc CCFP FRCPC (Brampton, ON) 

77. Lori Hasulo, MD CCFP (Guelph, ON) 

78. Michael Hirsh, MD CCFP FCFP (Ottawa, ON) 

79. Jia Hu, MD CCFP MSc (candidate) FRCPC (candidate) (Toronto, ON) 

80. Joelene Huber, MD FRCP (Toronto, ON) 

81. Jennifer Hulme, MD MPH CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

82. Andrea Hunter, MD FRCPC FAAP (Hamilton, ON) 

83. Stephen Hwang, MD MPH FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

84. Robert James, MD FCFP (Dundas, ON) 

85. Carlye Jensen, MD CCFP (EM) (Uxbridge, ON) 

86. Julie Johnstone, MD MScCH FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

87. Vaibhav Kamble, MD CCFP FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

88. Miriam Kaufman, BSN MD FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

89. Claire Kendall, MD MSc(Public Health) PhD  (Ottawa, ON) 

90. Jay S. Keystone, CM MD MSc (CTM) FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

91. Gary M. Kirk, MD MPH (Windsor, ON) 

Page 112 of 138



 

8. 
 

92. Michael Kirlew, BSC MD CCFP (Sioux Lookout, ON) 

93. Carol Kitai, MD FCFP PhD (Toronto, ON) 

94. Meghan Kizuik, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

95. Michelle Klaiman, MD FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

96. Fiona Kouyoumdjian, MD MPH PhD CCFP FRCPC (Hamilton, ON) 

97. Marilyn R. Koval, MD CCFP FCFP (Sioux Lookout, ON) 

98. Olaf Kraus de Camargo, MD PhD FRCPC (Hamilton, ON) 

99. Ayelet Kuper, MD DPhil FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

100. David W. Lawrence, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

101. Guy LeBlanc, MD MPH CCFP (Hamilton, ON) 

102. Pamela Leece, MD MSc CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

103. Joel Lexchin, MD CCFP(EM) FCFPC (Toronto, ON) 

104. Cheryl Leung, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

105. Meng Lin, MD (Ottawa, ON) 

106. Joyce Lock, MD MSc BSc FRCP(C) CCFP(EM) (Elgin, ON) 

107. Julia Lowe, MD (Toronto, ON) 

108. S. Luckett-Gatopoulos, MSc MD FRCPC candidate (Hamilton, ON) 

109. Meredith MacKenzie, MD BSc CCFP FCFP (Kingston, ON) 

110. Victor Paul Mackenzie, MD MPH FRCS (C) (Kingston, ON) 

111. Christopher Mackie, MD MHSc CCFP FRCPC (London, ON) 

112. Jonathon Maguire, MD FRCP (Toronto, ON) 

113. Faiza Majeed, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

114. Roy Male, BSL BSc MDCM FCFP (Toronto, ON) 

115. Arinder Malik, MD FRCPC (Burlington, ON) 

116. Thomas Man, MD (Toronto, ON) 

117. Gaétan Martel, MD (Embrun, ON) 

118. Danielle Martin, MD CCFP MPP (Toronto, ON) 

119. Richard Mather, MD MSc (Kingston, ON) 

120. Allison McGeer, MSc MD FRCPC (Toronto, Ontario) 

121. David McKeown, MDCM MHSc FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

122. Melissa Melnitzer, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

Page 113 of 138



 

9. 
 

123. Ripudaman S. Minhas, MD MPH FRCPC FAAP (Toronto, ON 

124. Veronica Mohr, MD (Kingston, ON) 

125. Aideen Moore, MD MHSC FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

126. Kieran M. Moore, MD CCFP (EM) FCFP MPH DTM&H FRCPC (Kingston, ON) 

127. Madeline Morris, MD CCFP (Kingston, ON) 

128. Elizabeth Muggah, MD MPH CCFP (Ottawa, ON) 

129. Laura Muldoon, MD MPH FCFP (Ottawa, ON) 

130. Christine Navarro, MD MSc CCFP FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

131. Adam Newman, MD CCFP CCSAM (Kingston Ontario) 

132. Patricia O’Donnell, MD (Kingston, ON) 

133. Catherine Oliver, MD (Toronto, ON) 

134. Aaron M. Orkin, MD MSc MPH CCFP FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

135. James R. M. Owen, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

136. Janice Owen, Ba MSc MD CCFP FCFP (Clinton, ON) 

137. Casey Park, MD (Hamilton, ON) 

138. Elaine Parker, MD CCFP (Cambridge, ON) 

139. Rupa Patel, MD FCFP (Kingston, ON) 

140. Rosana Pellizzari, MD MSc CCFP FRCPC (Peterborough, ON) 

141. Nicholas Pimlott, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

142. Don Pinksen, MD FCFP (Guelph, ON) 

143. Andrew Pinto, MD CCFP FRCPC MSc (Toronto, ON) 

144. Jenn Pope, MD CCFP (Kingston, ON) 

145. Kevin Pottie, MD CCFP MClSc FCFP (Ottawa, ON) 

146. Kathy Pouteau, MD CCFP (Sioux Lookout, ON) 

147. Eva Purkey, MD MPH CCFP (Kingston, ON) 

148. Michael Rachlis, MD MSc FRCPC LLD (Hon) (Toronto, ON) 

149. Meb Rashid, MD CCFP (Toronto) 

150. Danyaal Raza, MD MPH CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

151. Fathima Razik, MBBS Bsc (Toronto, ON) 

152. Vanessa Redditt, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

153. Elizabeth Rea, MD MSc FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

Page 114 of 138



 

10. 
 

154. Kate Reeve, MHSc MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

155. Cheryl J. Rowe, MD FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

156. Nadia Salvo MSc, MD CCFP candidate (Mississauga, ON) 

157. Lindy Samson MD FRCPC (Ottawa, ON) 

158. Peter Saranchuk, MD (Ottawa, ON) 

159. Sarah B. Schwartz, MD MEd FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

160. Fran Scott MD CCFP FRCPC MSc (Hamilton, ON) 

161. Michael Scott, MD BSc (Toronto, ON) 

162. Michael Sgro, MD FRCP Toronto, ON)  

163. Leslie Shanks, MD CCFP MPH (Toronto, ON) 

164. Dominick Shelton, MD CCFP (EM) (Toronto, ON) 

165. Lisa Simon, MD MPH CCFP FRCPC (Barrie, ON) 

166. Belle Song, MD HBSc (Kingston ON) 

167. Marlene E. Spruyt, BSc MD CCFP FCFP MSc-PH (New Liskeard, ON) 

168. Jason St-Hilaire, MD (Port Colborne, ON) 

169. Paula Stewart, MD FRCPC (Brockville, ON) 

170. Alexander Summers, BSc MD (Toronto ON) 

171. Penny Sutcliffe, MD MHSc FRCPC (Sudbury, ON) 

172. Itamar E. Tamari, MD CCFP FCFP (Toronto, ON) 

173. Devon S. J. Tilbrook MD CCFP (Sioux Lookout, ON) 

174. Robert Tremblay, MDCM CCFP (Guelph, ON) 

175. Sarah Tuck, MD CCFP (Ottawa, ON) 

176. Nicholas Wang, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

177. Xu Wang, MD, MPH, CCFP (Barrie, ON) 

178. Bryna Warshawsky, MDCM CCFP MHSc FRCPC (London, ON) 

179. Gail Webber, MD PhD (Ottawa, ON) 

180. Antoinette Wertman, MD CCFP (EM) (Toronto, ON) 

181. Ashley White, MD MPH (Simcoe ON) 

182. Cynthia R Whitehead, MD PhD CCFP FCFP (Toronto, ON) 

183. Miriam Wiebe, MD CCFP (Toronto, ON) 

184. Larry Willms, MD (Sioux Lookout, ON) 

Page 115 of 138



 

11. 
 

185. C. Ruth Wilson, MD FCFP MC (Kingston, ON) 

186. Angela Wong, MD FCFP (Toronto, ON) 

187. Susan Woolhouse, MD MClSc CCFP FCFP (Toronto, ON) 

188. Ethel Ying, MD FRCP (Toronto, ON) 

189. Yeung-Seu Yoon, MD FRCPC FAAP (Markham, ON) 

190. Elizabeth Young, MD FRCP (Toronto, ON) 

191. Kelvin Young, MD FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

192. Ariella Zbar, MD CCFP MPH MBA (Kingston, ON) 

193. Sharon Zikman, MD FRCPC (Toronto, ON) 

194. Irene Zouros, MD CCFP (EM) (Kingston, ON) 

 

References 

 

                                                           
1
www.cma.ca/multimedia/CMA/Content_Images/Inside_cma/Media_Release/2012/reportcard/Annual_reportcard_en.

pdf 
2
 www.ocfp.on.ca/cpd/povertytool 

3
 http://www.theglobeandmail.com/globe-debate/as-a-doctor-heres-why-im-prescribing-tax-returns-

seriously/article9981613/ 
4
 www.campaign2000.ca/anniversaryreport/CanadaRC2014EN.pdf 

5
 www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/11/24/ontario_falling_behind_its_own_poverty_reduction_goals.html 

6
http://developingchild.harvard.edu/index.php/resources/briefs/inbrief_series/inbrief_the_impact_of_early_adversity/ 

7
 www.ontario.ca/government/2014-mandate-letter-health-and-long-term-care 

8
 www.basicincomecanada.org 

9
 May 28, 2015 letter from Barry Ward, Chair of the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, to three federal and four 

Ontario provincial ministers 
10

 www.utpjournals.press/doi/pdf/10.3138/cpp.37.3.283 
11

 www.thebigpush.net/uploads/2/2/6/8/22682672/basic_income_programs_and_pilots_february_3_2014.pdf 
12

 www.independent.co.uk/news/world/europe/dutch-city-of-utrecht-to-experiment-with-a-universal-unconditional-

income-10345595.html 
13

 www.utpjournals.press/doi/pdf/10.3138/cpp.37.3.283 
14

 www.policyschool.ucalgary.ca/sites/default/files/research/emery-foodbankfinal.pdf 
15

 www.aeaweb.org/articles.php?doi=10.1257/pol.3.3.175 
16

 www.lco-cdo.org/en/vulnerable-workers-interim-report-quick-facts 
17

 www.unitedwaytoronto.com/document.doc?id=91 
18

 www.basicincomecanada.org 
19

 May 28, 2015 letter from Barry Ward, Chair of the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, to three federal and four 

Ontario provincial ministers 
20

 http://vibrantcanada.ca/blogs/john-stapleton/they-cant-we-can#segal 

Page 116 of 138



Page 117 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
9i) Attachment



Page 118 of 138



Page 119 of 138



Page 120 of 138



Page 121 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
9j) Attachment



Page 122 of 138



 

2 Carlton Street, Suite 1306 

Toronto ON  M5B 1J3 

Tel: (416) 595-0006 

Fax: (416) 595-0030 

E-mail: mail@alphaweb.org 

 

Providing leadership in public health management 

 
NEWS RELEASE 

June 19, 2015         For Immediate Release 

alPHa Passes New Slate of Resolutions 
 
TORONTO – At its Annual General Meeting in Ottawa last week, the members of the Association of Local 
Public Health Agencies passed resolutions calling for: 
 

 development and implementation of a provincial Naloxone Strategy that would expand access to 
Naloxone in support of reducing deaths from opioid overdoses; 

 development and implementation of a national, universal pharmacare program to enable all 
Canadians access to quality, safe and cost effective medications, improve health outcomes and 
generate cost savings; 

 joint federal-provincial consideration and investigation into a basic income guarantee, as a policy 
option for reducing poverty and income insecurity, give the well-established, strong relationship 
between low income and a range of adverse health outcomes; and 

 increasing the minimum legal age for access to tobacco products in Ontario to 21 as a measure to 
deter smoking initiation. 

 
alPHa also installed a new President for 2015-16, Lorne Coe, Regional Councillor, Town of Whitby, who is also 
the Chair of Durham Region’s Health & Social Services Committee.  Says Coe: “I am very proud of the 
dedication to the overall health of the population shown by Boards of Health through the resolutions passed 
at this years’ annual general meeting. We look forward to working on these issues with government in order 
to ensure that investments in keeping people healthy remain a cornerstone of its pledge to change and 
improve Ontario's health system.” 
 
The full slate of resolutions passed on June 8 can be found at http://www.alphaweb.org/?Resolutions_2015  
The complete alPHa Board of Directors can be found at http://www.alphaweb.org/?page=BOD_2015   
 
About alPHa 
 
The Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) is a non-profit organization that provides leadership 
to Ontario’s boards of health and public health units.  The Association works with governments and other 
health organizations, to advocate for a strong and effective public health system in the province, as well as 
public health policies, programs and services that benefit all Ontarians.   
 

- 30 - 
 
For more information regarding this news release, please contact: 

 
Linda Stewart 
Executive Director 
(416) 595-0006 ext. 22 
linda@alphaweb.org  
 
 

Page 123 of 138

http://www.alphaweb.org/?Resolutions_2015
http://www.alphaweb.org/?page=BOD_2015
mailto:linda@alphaweb.org
christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
10a) Attachment

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text



Ministry of Health Ministère de la Santé 
and Long-Term Care  et des Soins de longue durée 

Chief Medical Officer of Health  Médecin hygiéniste en chef 

Public Health Division  Division de la santé publique 
21st Floor, 393 University Avenue  393 avenue University, 21e étage 
Toronto ON  M7A 2S1 Toronto ON  M7A 2S1 

Telephone: (416) 212-3831 Téléphone: (416) 212-3831 
Facsimile: (416) 325-8412 Télécopieur: (416) 325-8412 

August 10, 2015 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Board of Health Chairs 
Medical Officers of Health and Associate Medical Officers of Health 

Re: Amendments to the Protocol under the Ontario Public Health Standards – Food Safety 
Protocol, 2015  

I am writing to inform you of the following changes to the Ontario Public Health Standards 
(OPHS):  

• The Food Safety Protocol, 2013 has been replaced with the Food Safety Protocol, 2015.

The changes to the Protocol were made by the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (the 
ministry) based on input from public health units.  

Amendments in the Food Safety Protocol, 2015 include:  

• Revisions to the annual risk categorization process for food premises. The protocol has
been updated to mandate boards of health to conduct risk categorization in accordance with
the Guidance Document for the Risk Categorization of Food Premises, 2015.  As such, the
Guidance Document for the Risk Categorization of Food Premises, 2015 is legally binding
and must be followed during the risk categorization process; and

• Clarification regarding routine inspection frequency of seasonal fixed premises.  These
premises, if in operation for six months or less, are to be inspected at least once per
calendar year.

The new Food Safety Protocol, 2015 is attached for your reference and will come into effect 
immediately. It will be available in English and French, respectively, through the OPHS website 
at the following links: 

http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/food_safety.pdf 

http://www.health.gov.on.ca/fr/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/food_safetyf.pdf 

The ministry will communicate further details regarding the changes to the Food Safety 
Protocol, 2015 to public health units via regular communications to ensure continued 
compliance with the Health Protection and Promotion Act and the OPHS. 

…/2 

HLTC2976CMOH-2015-109 

Page 124 of 138

http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/food_safety.pdf
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/fr/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/food_safetyf.pdf
christina_luukkonen
Highlight

christina_luukkonen
Highlight

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
10b) Attachment



- 2 - 

I would like to express my thanks to you and your staff for your ongoing work in upholding the 
OPHS and Protocols to ensure the continued strength of the public health system in Ontario.  

Yours truly, 

Original signed by 

David C. Williams, MD, MHSc, FRCPC 
Acting Chief Medical Officer of Health 

Attachments: 
Food Safety Protocol, 2015 

c: Roselle Martino, Executive Director, Public Health Division 
Nina Arron, Director, Public Health Policy and Programs Branch, Public Health Division 
Paulina Salamo, A/Director, Public Health Standards, Practice and Accountability Branch, 
Public Health Division 
Dr. Peter Donnelly, President and Chief Executive Officer, Public Health Ontario 
Dr. George Pasut, Vice-President, Science and Public Health, Public Health Ontario 
Dr. Ray Copes, Chief, Environmental and Occupational Health, Public Health Ontario  

HLTC2976CMOH-2015-109 

Page 125 of 138



Ministry of Health Ministère de la Santé 
and Long-Term Care  et des Soins de longue durée 

Chief Medical Officer of Health  Médecin hygiéniste en chef 

Public Health Division  Division de la santé publique 
21st Floor, 393 University Avenue  393 avenue University, 21e étage 
Toronto ON  M7A 2S1 Toronto ON  M7A 2S1 

Telephone: (416) 212-3831 Téléphone: (416) 212-3831 
Facsimile: (416) 325-8412 Télécopieur: (416) 325-8412 

August 19, 2015 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Board of Health Chairs 
Medical Officers of Health and Associate Medical Officers of Health 

Re: Amendment to the Protocol under the Ontario Public Health Standards – Public Health 
Emergency Preparedness Protocol, 2015 

I am writing to inform you of the following changes to the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS): 

• The Public Health Emergency Preparedness Protocol, 2008 has been replaced with the Public
Health Emergency Preparedness Protocol, 2015.

The changes to the Protocol were made by the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (the 
ministry) based on input from Public Health Ontario (PHO) and Public Health Units.  

Amendments in the Public Health Emergency Preparedness Protocol, 2015 include:  
• Clarification of requirements throughout the protocol including requirements for:

o Engagement and collaboration with relevant local government bodies and community
partners;

o Reviewing and updating the hazard-identification and risk-assessment;
o Updating the continuity of operations plan and the emergency response plan;
o Conducting annual exercises of the continuity of operations plan, emergency response

plan, and 24/7 notification protocol;
o Identifying high-risk populations in the community relevant to specific hazards or threats

and assessing potential for disproportionate health impacts to high-risk populations;
o Evaluating the use of the continuity of operations plan after each use; and
o Reviewing and updating contacts for 24/7 notifications.

• Minor wording changes to clarify language.

The new Public Health Emergency Preparedness Protocol, 2015 is attached for your reference and 
will come into effect immediately. 

It will be available in English and French, respectively, through the OPHS website at the following 
links: 
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/emergency_prepare
dness.pdf 
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/fr/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/emergency_prepared
nessf.pdf 

…/2 
HLTC2976CMOH-2015-126 

Page 126 of 138

http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/emergency_preparedness.pdf
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/emergency_preparedness.pdf
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/fr/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/emergency_preparednessf.pdf
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/fr/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/emergency_preparednessf.pdf
christina_luukkonen
Highlight

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
10c) Attachment

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text



 

- 2 -  
 
The ministry will communicate further details regarding these changes to public health units via 
regular communications to ensure continued compliance with the Health Protection and Promotion 
Act and the OPHS. 
 
I would like to express my thanks to you and your staff for your ongoing work in upholding the 
OPHS and Protocols to ensure the continued strength of the public health system in Ontario. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
Original signed by 
 
David C. Williams, MD, MHSc, FRCPC 
Acting Chief Medical Officer of Health 
 
Attachment 
 
c: Roselle Martino, Executive Director, Public Health Division 

Clint Shingler, A/Director, Emergency Management Branch, Public Health Division 
Paulina Salamo, A/Director, Public Health Standards, Practice and Accountability Branch, 
Public Health Division 
Dr. Peter Donnelly, President and Chief Executive Officer, Public Health Ontario 
Dr. George Pasut, Vice-President, Science and Public Health, Public Health Ontario 
Dr. Brian Schwartz, Chief, Communicable Diseases, Emergency Preparedness and 
Response, Public Health Ontario 
Lisa Fortuna, Director, Communicable Diseases, Emergency Preparedness and Response, 
Public Health Ontario 

 
HLTC2976CMOH-2015-126 
 

Page 127 of 138



Page 128 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
10d) Attachment

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text



Page 129 of 138



Page 130 of 138



Page 131 of 138



BRUCE 
GREY 
FOOD 
CHARTER

A guiding document to assist in the 
development of policies and pro-
grams to promote a healthy and 
just food system in Grey and Bruce  
Counties. The Charter acknowl-
edges the right for all to food.

Page 132 of 138



In acknowledgement of the basic 
right to food, the Charter is a 
commitment to work together to 
build a vibrant, sustainable, food 
secure community. Based on 
community participation, a 
sustainable local food system 
will prioritize health, social 
justice, education, economic 
development, the environment, 
and culture.

THE 
CHARTER

Page 133 of 138



BECAUSE WE VALUE

HEALTH
WE SUPPORT

Public policy that recognizes food‘s contribution to 
physical, mental, spiritual, and emotional well-being

Making food readily accessible for our rural and urban 
residents, including adequate transportation links,
neighbourhoods that encourage walkable and 
bikeable access to healthy food

Strategies to prevent and manage chronic diseases 
through access to affordable, healthy, safe, adequate, 
and culturally appropriate food

Baby friendly policies that protect, promote, and 
support  breastfeeding through informed decision 
making

BECAUSE WE VALUE

SOCIAL JUSTICE
WE SUPPORT

Making sure everyone has access to healthy food

A fair wage for the production of food, and a safe 
and respectful environment for all farmers and food 
workers

Allowing land access for people interested in growing 
and/or processing food

Income, education, employment, housing, and 
transportation policies and practices that support 
access to healthy, sustainable food

Page 134 of 138



BECAUSE WE VALUE

EDUCATION
WE SUPPORT

Food literacy and skill building initiatives that engage 
youth and students integrated in school curricula

Programs that train current and future farmers, home 
gardeners, food producers, and others involved in the 
food value chain

Integrating food literacy, community gardening and 
seed saving into communities

Developing community gardens at schools and other 
public settings

Public education about the connections between our 
health, the environment, and our food choices

Public awareness of the role of agriculture in our lives

BECAUSE WE VALUE

CULTURE
WE SUPPORT

Celebrating and promoting respect for and inclusion of 
traditional, cultural, and spriritual food diversity

Enhancing the dignity and joy of growing, preparing, 
and eating food

Strengthening links between rural and urban 
communities

Opportunities for all community members to be 
included and to make connections through the experi-
ence and sharing food. 

Page 135 of 138



BECAUSE WE VALUE
SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT
WE SUPPORT

Increasing the production, processing, distribution, 
and consumption of foods from Grey and Bruce

Promoting our region as a food, agricultural, and 
culinary destination

Food and agricultural research that is innovative, 
sustainable, and includes alternative food systems

Services and infrastructure that support local farms 
and the development of local food related programs 
and businesses

Practices that recognize the detrimental impact 
of food transportation and strive to minimize 
environmental burden

BECAUSE WE VALUE

ENVIRONMENT
WE SUPPORT

Farming practices, protect, and enhance watersheds, 
wildlife habitat, soil and bio-diversity

Food production methods that sustain the natural 
environment in rural and urban settings

Sustainable development of agriculture, water, land 
use policies and practices that support the production 
of healthy food

Page 136 of 138



OUR VISION
REDUCE AND ELIMINATE POVERTY IN OUR 
COMMUNITY

JOIN THE BRUCE GREY POVERTY TASK FORCE
The Bruce Grey Poverty Task Force focuses on building partnerships with key 

community stakeholders and networks; working together to eliminate poverty, 
enhancing our common understanding of poverty issues through solution-based 

research, knowledge development, and information sharing.

Jill Umbach    United Way of Bruce Grey
Planning Network Coordinator  380 9th Street East, Owen Sound
Bruce Grey Poverty Task Force  N4K 1P1
519-377-9406
jill.umbach@gmail.comCO

NN
EC

T

OUR PURPOSE
FACILITATE COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS TO ADVOCATE 
FOR POVERTY REDUCTON AND ELIMINATION

Page 137 of 138



 

Page 138 of 138

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text
10e) Attachment

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text

christina_luukkonen
Typewritten Text


	Ministry of Health   Ministère de la Santé
	and Long-Term Care  et des Soins de longue durée
	Ministry of Health   Ministère de la Santé
	and Long-Term Care  et des Soins de longue durée
	GBHU BOH Resolution, 2015-54, Bruce Grey Food Charter, Bruce County.pdf
	GBHU BOH Resolution, 2015-54, Bruce Grey Food Charter, Grey County.pdf



